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AUDITORS® REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of
ACS, Actividades de Construccidn y Servicios, S.A.:

1. We have audited the financial statements of ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A.

comprising the balance sheet at 31 December 2009 and the related income statement, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements for the year then
ended. The preparation of these financial statements is the responsibility of the Company’s
directors. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole
based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
which require examination, by means of selective tests, of the evidence supporting the financial
statements and evaluation of their presentation, of the accounting policies applied and of the
estimates made.

. As required by Spanish corporate and commercial law, for comparison purposes the directors
present, in addition to the figures for 2009 for each item in the balance sheet, income statement,
statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, the
figures for 2008. The presentation of the figures relating to the income statement for 2008 differs
from that contained in the approved financial statements for that year as it includes the
reclassification of income detailed in Note 2.4 to the accompanying financial statements. On 1
April 2009, we issued our anditors’ report on the 2008 financial statements, in which we expressed
an unqualified opinion.

. ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. is the parent of a group of companies which
presents consolidated financial statements separately from the accompanying financial statements.
On this same date, we issued our auditors’ report on the 2009 consolidated financial statements of
ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, 5.A. and Subsidiaries prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRSs), in
which we expressed an unqualified opinion. Per the consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with EU-IFRSs, total assets and consclidated sales amounted to EUR 31,754,213
thousand and EUR 15,605,930 thousand, respectively, and the profit for the year and equity
attributable to the parent totalled EUR 1,951,531 thousand and EUR 4,303,410 thousand,
respectively.

. In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements for 2009 present fairly, in all material
respects, the equity and financial position of ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. at
31 December 2009 and the results of its operations, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended, and contain the required information, sufficient for their proper interpretation and
comprehension, in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles and standards
under the Spanish regulations applicable to the Company applied on a basis consistent with that
used in the preparation of the figures and information for the preceding year, which were included
in these financial statements for comparison purposes.

Delotie $1. inscrta en el Registro Mercanul de Madrid, tomo 13.650, secaidn 8%, folie 188, hojs M-54414, mnscnpaidn 96 CLF: B-79104469
Domicl:e socal Plaza Pablo Rz Picasso, 1, Toree Picassa, 28020, Madrd

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



. The accompanying directors’ report for 2009 contains the explanations which the directors consider
appropriate about the Company’s situation, the evolution of its business and other matters, but is
not an integral part of the financial statements. We have checked that the accounting information in
the directors’ report is consistent with that contained in the financial statements for 2009. Our work
as auditors was confined to checking the directors” report with the aforementioned scope, and did

aviel Parada Pardo
11 March 2010
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ACS, Actividades de Consliruccion y Servicios, S.A.

ACS, ACTIVIDADES DE CONSTRUCCION Y SERVICIOS, S.A.

INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 AND 2008

(Thousands of Euros)

Note: 31M2/2009 | 31/12/2008

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 17.1 947,555 901,449
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 13 (188)
Capitalised expenses of in-house work on assets 1,937 1,238
Procurements (6,811) {6,791)
Cost of raw materials and other consumabies used (671} (896)
Contract work carried out by other companies (6,140) (5,895)
Other operating income 7,292 10,660
Staff Costs {23,847) (25,089)
Wages, salaries and simifar expenses {19,590} {20,463)
Employee benefit costs 17.2 (4,257) (4,626)
Other operating expenses (24,739} {28,089}
Outside services (21,550} (25,042)
Taxes other than income tax {1,945) (1,793)
Losses on, impairment of and change in allowances for trade receivables {1,244) (1.254)
Depreciation and amortisation charge {1,257) {1,123}
impairment and gains on the disposal of non-current assets 1 -
Other profit or loss 17.4 {8,811) 19,223
OPERATING INCOME 881,333 871,290
Finance income 25,028 20,413
From marke{able securities and other financial instruments 17.3 25,028 20,413
Finance costs 17.3 (227,748} {317,630}
On debis to Group companies and associales {39,296} (94,071}
On debts to third parties (188,452) (223,559)
Changes in the fair value of financial instruments 102,173 2,986 {650,767)
Exchange differences (32) 37
Impairment and gains or losses on the disposal of financial instruments 9.3 {28,048) 981,009
Impairmemnt and losses {28,048) 3,612
Gains or losses on disposals and others 9.3 - 977,397
FINANCIAL PROFIT (227,814) 33,062
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 663,519 904,352
Income tax 5 54,386 106,073
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 717,905 1,010,425
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit for the year from discontinued cperations net of laxes 19 119,479 93,920

837,384 1,104,345

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The accompanying Noles 1 to 22 are an inlegral part of the 2009 income slalement.




ACS, Actividades de Construccien y Servicios, S.A.

ACS, ACTIVIDADES DE CONSTRUCCION Y SERVICIOS, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IMN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 AND 2008

{(Thousands of Euros)

A} Siatements of recognised income and expenses for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

311212009 31122008
A) Profit per income statement 837,384 1,104,345
B) 1nco_me and expenses recognised directly in (26.757) (62,489)
equity
I Arising from the measurement of financial (72.366) )
instruments
II.- Arising from cash flow hedges 34,142 (89,270)
.- Tax effect 11,467 26,781
C} Transfers to profit or loss - -
Total recognised income and expense (A + 8+ C}) 810,627 1,041,856

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the statement of recognised income and expense for 2009.




ACS, Actividades de Construccion v Servicios, S.A.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ACS, ACTIVIDADES DE CONSTRUCCION Y SERVICIOS, S.A.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 AND 2008

(Thousands of Euros)

B} Statements of changes in total equity for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

Shareholders' equity

Treasury Proftt and Adjustments ]
Share Share Reserves shares and | | © rforrtlhe Interim forchanges | Total Equity
capital premium equity sar dividend in value
interests y

Beginning kalance at 01/01/2008 176,437 897,294 1,052,788 (516,341) 1,228,334 {264,655) 19,381 2,593,838
mﬂ;‘:t;g)beg'""'"g bafance 176,437 397,284 1,052,788 (516,341} 1,228,934 (264,656} 19,381 2,693,338
I. Tetal recognised income and
expanses - - - - 1,104,345 {62,489) 1,041,856
'S‘ha"'r‘;;“;‘:fe‘r':gj :‘:::ers {17.115) . (635,720) 516,341 |  {1,228,934) (22,125) -1 (1,287,553)
1. Dividends pad - - 637,564 - (1.228,934) 264,855 - {325,315)
2 Treasury share and equity _ i )
nterest transactions (net) (17.115) (1,173,684} 516,341 - (674,458}
interim dividend - - - - - (286,780} - {286,780)
. Other changes in equity - - 2,654 - - - 2,654
1, Equity instrument based B : 2654 _ B } A 2654
payments
Bafance at 31/12/2008 159,322 897,294 519,722 - 1,104,345 {286,780) (43,108} 2,350,795
I. Total recognised income and ; ; _ _ 837,384 : (28,767) 810,627
expenses
il. Transactions with {1,890) . 341,834 . {1,104,345) 3,582 - (760,919)
shareholders or owners
1. Dividends paid - - 456,807 - (1.104,345} 286,780 - (360,758}
2. Treasury share and equity B _ B } }
interest transactions {net) (1,990) (114,973} (115,963)
3. Interim dividend - - - - - {283,198) - (283,198}
Hi. Other changes in equity - - 1,734 - - - 1,734
1. Equity instrument based ) ) 1734 B ) ) _ 1734
payments
Balance at 31/12/2009 157,332 897,294 863,290 - 837,384 {283,198} {69,865) 2,402,237

The accompanying Noles 1 io 22 are an integral part of the stalement of changes in total equity for 2009.




ACS. Actividades de Consiruccion y Servicios, S.A.

ACS, ACTIVIDADES DE CONSTRUCCION Y SERVICIOS, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2009 AND 2008

{Thousands of Euros)

3111212009 311212008
A) Cash flows from operating activities (142+3+4) 588,278 601,518
1, Profit befere tax 563,519 904,352
2. Adjusiments to profit for: {721,183} (888,624}
(+) Cepreciation and amortisation charge 1.257 1,123
(+/)  Other adjustments to profit (net) (722,440) (B89,747)
3. Changes in working capital {33,038) (151,865)
4. Other cash flows from operating activities 778,980 737,765
{-} interest paid (227,748) (317,630)
{+) Cividends received 810,085 789660
(+} interest received 164,324 159,652
{+-} Income tax recovered (paid) 32,319 106,072
B) Cash flows from investment activities {1+2) {1,658,474) 1,691,836
1. Payments due to investments (2,319,283) {1,082,995)
] Group companies, associates and business units (59) (1,079,990)
(-} Property. plant and equipment, intangible assets and property investmenis {2,854) (3.005)
{-) Cther financial asseis (2,316,633) -
{ Other assets (337) -
2. Divestment receivables: 660,809 2,774,831
(+) Group companies, associates and business units 560,809 2,774,83%
c Cash flows from financing activities (1+2+3) 970,054 {2,292,799)
1. Proceeds and payments relating to equity instruments (116,963) {674,458)
-} Retirement of treasury shares (116,953) {674,458)
2. Proceeds and payments relating to financial liability instruments 1,740,237 {1,018,2986)
{+) Issue 1,740,237 -
(-}  Refund and repayment - {1,618,296)
3 Dividends and returns on other equity instruments paid {653,220} (600,045)
o] Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {142) 655
E Cash and cash eqguivalents at beginning of year 2,599 1,944
F Cash and cash equivalents at end of year {D+E}) 2,457 2,599
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(+}  Gashand banks 2,457 2,599
2,457 2,599

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the statement of cash flows at 31 December 2009.




ACS, Actividades de Construccién y Senncios, S.A.

ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicics, S.A.
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2009

1.- Company activities

ACS, Actividades de Construccién v Servicios, S A, was incorporated by public deed on 3 October 1942, for an indefinitz pernod. its
registered office is at Avda. de Pio X, 102. 28036 Madrid.

in accordance with Adicle 4 of its Byiaws. the Company's corporate purpose comprises:

1. The business of constructing ail kinds of public and private works, as well as the provision of services, for the conservation,
maintenance and operation of motonvays, highways, roads and, in general any type of public or private roads and any other type
of works, and any kind of industrial, commerciat and financial actions and operations which bear a direct or indirect relationship

thereto.

2.  Prometing. constructing, restoring and selling housing devslopments and ail kinds of buildings intended for industial,
commercial or residential purposes, either on its own or through third parties. Carrying out conservation and maintenance of

works, facilities and sesvices, whether urban or industrial.

3. The direction and execution of all manner of works, facifities, assemblies and maintenance refated to production plants and lines,
electric power transmission and distribution, substations, transformation, interconnection and switching centres, generation and
conversion stations, electric, mechanical and track, instaliations for railways, metros and light trains, railway, light train and
trolleybus electrification, eleciric dam instaliations, purifying plants, drinking water treatrent plants, wharis, ports, airports, docks,
ships. shipyards, platforms, flotation elements, and any other elements for diagnostics, tests, security and protection, controls for
interfocking. operating, metering — either directly or remotely — for industries and buildings as well as those suited to the above
listed, facilities, electrification, public lighting and illumination, electric installations in mines, refineries and explosive
envirenmenis; and in general all manner of, facilities related to the production, transmission, distribution, upkeep, recovery and
use of =lectric energy in all its stages and systems, as well as the operation repair, replacement and upkeep of the componants
thereof. Control and automation of all manner of electric networks and instaliations, remote controls and computer equipment
reguired for the management, computerization and rationalisation of all kinds of energy consumption.

4. The direction and execution of all manner of works, faciities, assemblies and maintenance related to the electronics of systems
and networks for telephone, telegraph, signalling and 5.0.S. communications, civil defence, defence and traffic, voice and data
transmission and use, measurements and signals, as well as propagation, broadcast, repetition and reception of all kinds of
waves, antennas, relays, radio-finks, navigation aids, equipment and elements required for the execution of such works,

assemblies and faciiities.

5. The direction and execution of all manner of works, facilities, assemblies and maintenance related to the development,
production, transformation, storage, transmission, channelling, distribution, use, metering and maintenance of any other kind of
energy and energy product, and of any other energy that may be used in the future, including the supply of special equipment,
elements required for installation and erection, and materials of all kinds.

8. The direction and execution of alt manner of works, assemblies, facilities and maintenance of hydroelectric works to develop,
store, raise, drive or distribute water, and its piping, transport and distribution, including water and gas treatment facilities.

7. The direction and execution of all mannar of works, assemblies, facilifies and maintenance for developing, transporting,
channelling and distributing liquid and solid gases for all kinds of uses.

8. The direction and execution of all manner of works, assemblies, facilities and maintenance of ventilation, heating, air
conditioning and refrigeration works and works to improve the environment, for all kinds of uses.

9.  The direction and execution of all manner of works, facifities, assemblies and, maintenance related to cable cars, gondola lifts,
chair lifts and aerial lifts for both passenger and malerial transport by means of systems of cables or any type of meachanical
element. The retrieval of ships and submerged elemeants, maritime, salvages, ship breaking, naval fleet repairs, repairs and
assembly of engines and mechanical elements for ships, and underwater werk and sale of aquatic and sports material.




ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A.

10. The manufaciure, transformation. processing, handling, repair. maintenance and all manner of operations of an industrial nature

11.

12.

13.

14.

is.

16.

17.

18.

18.

for commercialisation related to machinery, elements, toels, eguipment, eleciric protection material, bare and insuiated
conductors, insulators, metal fittings, machines, tools and auxitiary equipment for assemblies and installation of railways, metros
and light trains, electric power transmission and distribution plants, lines and networks and for telephone and telegraph
communications, telecommunication, security, traffic, telematics and voice and data transmission systems; of elemenis and
machings for the development, transformation, fransmission and use of all kinds of energies and energy products; of fluid and
gas lift pumps, piping and other elements, mechanisms, accessory instruments, spare parts and materials required for execution,
execution of any indusirial, agriculiural, naval, transport, communication and mining works, faciliies and assembiies and others
listed in the preceding paragraphs. Managing the business of production, saie and use of electric energy, as well as other
energy sources, and carrying out studies related thereto, and managing the business of production, prospecting, sale and use of
all kinds of primary selid, liquid or gaseous energy rescurces, specifically including hydrocaroons and gas, whether natural,
liguid or :n another state, in their different forms and classes. Energy planmng and rationalisation of the use of energy and
cogeneration of samea. Research, development and operaticn of all aspects of communication and computing systems.

The manufaciure, installation, assembly, erection, supply, maintenance and commercialisation of all kinds of products and
elements pertaining to or derived from concrete, ceramics, resins, varnishes, painis. plastics or synthetic materials; as well as
metal structures for industrial plants and buildings, bridges, towers and supports of metal or reinforced concrete or any synthetic
materal for &ll manner of communications and electric power transmission or distribution, or any other class of energy matenal

or product related to all types of anergy.

The manufacture, preparation, handling and finishing, diagnosis, treatment and impregnation for protection and preservation and
sale of wood in general, and especiaily of posts used for electric, telephone and telegraph lines, impregnation or servicing for
mine and gallery timbering, building supports, construction woodwork, crossties for raibways and barricades, and the production
and commercialisation of antiseptic productions and running of procedures for preserving wood, elements, tools and equipment
of this nature. The acquisition, provision, application and use of paints, varnishes, coverings, glating and, in general, construction

materiais.

The management and execution of reforestation and agricultural and fishery restocking warks, as well as the maintenance and
improvement thereof. Landscaping, planting, revegetation, reforestation, maintenance and conservation of parks, gardens and

accessory elements.

The manufacture, installation, distribution and use in any way of all manner of ads and advertising supports. The design,
construciion, fabrication, installation, maintenance, cleaning, upkeep and advertising use of ali manner of street furniture and

similar elements.

The provision of all manner of public and private services of an urban nature, including the execution of any necessary works
and facilities, either by administrative concession or leasing. The treatment, recycling and recovery of all kinds of urban, urban-
assimilable, industrial and sanitary wastes; the ireaiment and sale of waste products, as well as the management and operation
of waste treatment and transfer plants. Drafting and processing of all manner of environment-related projects.

Cleaning services for buildings, constructions and works of any kind, of offices, commercial premises and public places. .
Clothes cleaning, washing, irening, serting and transportation.

Furniture assemblies and installations, including tabtes, shelves, office material, and similar or complementary objects.

Transporis of all kinds, especially ground transportation of passengers and merchandise, and the activities related thereto.
Management and operation, as well as provision of auxiliary and complemenfary services, of all manner of buildings and
properties or complexes for public or private use, intended for use as service areas or stations, recreational areas, and bus or

intermodal transportation stations.

Provision of integral health care and social assistance services by qualified personnel (physicians, psychologists, educators,
university graduates in nursing, social workers, physical therapisis and therapists) and performance of the following tasks: home
care service; tele-home care and social health care; total or partial running or management of homes, day care centres,
therapeutic communities and other shellers and rehabilitation centres; transportation and accompaniment of the above
menticned collectives; home hospitalisation and medical and nursing home care; supply of oxygen therapy, gas contiol, eleciro-

medicine, and associaied activities.
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20. Provision of auxiliary services in housing develepments, urban properties, industrial facilities, rcadway networks, shopping

21.

22

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28

29,

30.

31.

centres, official agencies and adrmunistrative departmeants, sporis or recreational facilities, museums, fairgrounds, sxhibition
galleries, conference and congress halls, hospitals, conventions, inaugurations, cultural and sports centres, sporting, social and
cultural events, exhibits, international conferences, general sharehelders’ and owners’ association meetings, receptions, press
conferences, teaching centres, parks, farming facilities (agricultural, tivestock and fisheries), foresis, rural farms, hunting
reserves. racreational and entertainment areas, and in general all kinds of properties and events, by means of porters,
superintendents, janitors, ushers, guards or controllers, console operators, auditorium personnel, concierges, receptionists,
ticket cierks (including ticket collection), telephone operators, collectors, caretakers, first aid personnef, hostesses and similar
persennel or personnel who complement their functions, consisting of the maintenance and upkaep of the premises, as well as
attention and service to neighbours, occupants, visitors andfor users, by undertaking the appropriate tasks, excluding in all
cases those which the law reserves for securily firms. Collection and tallying of cash, and the making, coilection and charging of
bilis and receipts. Development, promoticn, exhibition, performance, acquisition, sale and pravision of services in the field of art,
culture and recreation, in their different activities, forms, expressions and styles,

Provision of emergency, prevention, information, telephone switchboard, kitchen and dining hall services. Opening, closing and
custady of keys. Turning on and off, running, supervision, maintenance and repair of engines and heating and air conditioning,
electricity and lift installations, water, gas and other supply pipes, and fire protection systems. The operation of rapid
comimunicaiion systems with public assistance services, such as police. firemen, hospitais and medical centres. Fire fighting and
prevention services in general, in woodlands, forests, rurai farms, and indusirial and urban facilities

Integral management or operation of public or private educational or teaching centres, as well as surveillance, service, education
ang control of student bodies or other educational collectives.

Reading of water, gas and electricity meters, maintenance, repair and replacement thereof, monitoring and transcription of
readouts, meter inspection, data acquisition and updating, and instalment of alarms. Temperature and humidity measurements
on roadways and, in general, all kinds of properties and real estate, and public and private facilities, providing all the controls
required for proper upkeep and mainienance thereof, or of the goods deposited or guarded therein.

Handling, packing and distribution of food or consumer products; processing, flavouring and distribution of food for own
consumption ar supply to third parties; servicing, replacement and maintenance of equipment, machinery and dispensing
machines of the mentioned products; and participation in operations with raw materials, manufactured goods and supplies.

Provision of ground services to passengers and aircraft. Integral logistic freight services, such as: icading, unloading, stowing
and unsfowing, transport, distribution, placement, sorting, warehouse control, inventory preparation, replacement, control of
warehouse stocks and storage of all kinds of merchandise, excluding the activities subject to special legislation. Management
and operation of places of distribution of merchandise and goods in general, and especially perishable products, such as fish
exchanges and wholesale and retail markets. Reception, docking, mooring and service connections {0 boats.

Direct advertising services, postage and mailing of printed adveriising and publicity material and, in general, all kinds of
documents and packages, on behalf of the clients.

Managemenf, operation, administration, maintenance, upkeep, refurnishment and fitting out of all kinds of concessions in the
broadest sense of the word, including those that are part of the concessionary firm's shareholders and those that have any type

of confractual relation to develop any of the above listed aglivities.

The acquisition, holding, use, administration and disposal of all manner of own-account securities, excluding activities that
special legislation, and in particular the legislation on the stock market, exclusively ascribes to other entities.

Manage and administer representative securities of the shareholders’ equity of non-resident enfities in Spanish territory, through

the appropriate arganisation of personal and material means suited to this end.

Preparation of alt manner of studies, reports and projects, and entering inlo contracts concerning the activities indicated in this
article, as welf as supervisicn, direction and consulting in the execution thereof.

Qccupational training and recycling of people who provide the services described in the preceding points.

The activities included in the corporate purpese may be carried out by the Company either totally or partially on an indirect basis

{hrough shares in other companies.
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ACS, Actividades de Caonstruccion y Servicios, S.A., merged with Grupe Dragados, S.A. in 2003, effective for accounting purposes on
May 1 of that year This merger by absorption was subject to the tax neutraliy system set forth in an Chapter Vi of Title Vill of
Corperation Tax Law 43/1935 and the applicable provisions of this law are outlined in the notes o financial statements for 2003,

The Company is the parent of a group of subsidiaries, and in accordance with the fegislation in force, is required to separately prepare
consofidated financial statements. The ACS Group's consclidated financial statements were prepared by the Directors at its meeting
held on 11 March 201C. The consolidated financial statements for 2008 were approved by the General Shareholdars’ Maeting of ACS,
Actividades de Construccidn y Servicios, S.A. held on 25 May 2008 and then filed at the Madrid Mercantile Register.

Said consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Internationai Financial Reporting Standards {IAS/IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union. Note 4.5.1 details the consolidated sffect of the ACS Group's consolidated financial statements

prepared under these international standards in 2009 and 2008.

2.- Basis of presentation of the financial statements

2.1 Fair presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which were prepared from the Company's accounting records are presented in accordance
with Royal Decree 1514/2007 approving the Spanish National Chart of Accounts and, accordingly, present fairly the Company's equity,
financial position, the results of its operations and the changes in equity and cash flows for the corresponding year. These financial
statemenis, which were prepared by the Company's Directors, wili be submitted for approval by the Annual General Meeting, and it is
considered that they will be approved without any changes. The financial statements for 2008 were approved by the Annual General

Meating held on 25 May 2009.

2.2  Non-obligatory accounting principles apnlied

Ne non-obligatory accounting principles were applied. Also, the Directors prepared these financial statements by taking into account ail
the obligatory accounting principies and standards with a significant effect thereon. All obligatory accounting principles were applied.

2.3  Keyissues in relation to the measurement and estimation of uncertainty

tn preparing the accompanying financial statements estimates were made by the Company's Directors in order to measure certain of the
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported herein. These estimates relate basically to the following:

- The assessment of possible impairment losses on certain assels (Note 4}
~ The assumptions used in the actuarial caleulation of liabifities arising from pensions and other commitments to employees (Note

4.13)
- The vseful life of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Notes 4.1 and 4.2)

- The calculation of goodwill impairment (Note 5)
- The market value of centain financial instruments (Note 4.5.1)

- The calculation of provisions (Note 4.10)

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 2009 year-end, evenis that {ake place in the future
might make it necessary to change these estimates (upwards or downwards) in coming years. Changes in accounting estimates would

be applied prospectively.

2.4 Comparative information

In accordance with the request for a ruling published in Official Gazette No. 79 of the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute (ICAC) in
September 2009, the Company recognised the dividends received from investees as well as the finance income arising from their

financing as revenue.

Additionatly, in order to uniformiy present the comparative information, the information presented for comparalive purposes in 2008 was
reclassified as necessary, and accordingly the income statement differs fram the income statermen! included in the financial statements

for 2008.
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2.5 Grouping of items

Cetain items in the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows are grouped logether
to facilitate ther understanding; however, whenever the amounts invoived are material, the information is brokan down in the related
notes to the financial statemeanis.

3.- Distribution of profit

The proposed distribution of the profit for 2009 that the Company's Directors will submit for approval by the shareholders at the Apnual
General Meeting is as follows:

Thousands of

Euros
To goodwill reserve 41,208
To voluniary reserves 151,114
Dividends 645,062
Total 837,384

The propesed dividend for 2009 amounts to EUR 2.05 per share, totalling EUR 845,062 thousand. The dividend for 2008 also amounted
to EUR 2.05 per share, and iotailed EUR 653,220 thousand. Of the proposed dividend out of 2009 prefit, an interim dividend of EUR
.90 per share (the same as in 2008) was already approved in 2009 for a total of EUR 283,198 thousand (EUR 288,780 thousand in
2G08) recorded as a reduction in equity in the balance sheet under the heading “Interim Dividend Paid”, reporied on the liability side of
the balance sheet under "Other Financial Liabilities” and was paid on 12 January 2010 and 27 January 2009, respectively. For thess
puiposes, at its meetings held on 17 December 2009 and 3 December 2008, the Board of Directors prepared the accounting statement
required pursuant to Article 216 of the Cansolidated Companies Law, in which it declared the existence of sufficient fiquidity to distribute
the interim dividend amounts. The accounting statement refating to the approval of the dividend out of 2009 profit is as follows:

Thousands of
Euros

Cash avallable at 15 December 2008 681675
Cash projection up te 11 January 2010

Current transactions (18,210)

Financial transactions (25,614)

Collection of dividends from investees 156,778

Net investmenis (2,550)

Cash available prior to the payment of the interim dividend 794,079

Gross interim dividend 283,198

Cash available following payment of the interim dividend 510,881

The Company's earnings and the absence of causes giving rise to immediate claimability of liabilities at the aforementioned date
permitted the payment of the interim dividend without the requirement to increase debt on payment of such dividend.

Given that the Board of Directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of EUR 1.15 per share in 2008, the final dividend payable
amounted to EUR 366,440 thousand. For 2010 the Board of Direclors will propese the payment of a final dividend of EUR 1.15 per
share, and the final dividend payable will amount to EUR 361,864 thousand.

4. Accounting policies and measurement bases

The principal accounting policies and measurement bases used by the Company in preparing its financial statements for 2009, in
accordance with the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, were as follows:

4.1 Intangible assets

"
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As a general rule, intangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost. They are subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any recognised impairment losses. These assets are amortised over their years of useful life.

a) Goodwitl

Goodwill is recognized on the asset side of the balance sheet, where if has arisen as a result of an acquisition for valuable consideration
in relation to a business combination. The goodwill is assigned to each of the cash generating units for which gains are expected to
arise from the merger and are not amortised, Instead, these cash generating units are subjected at least annually to an impairment iest
in accordance with the methodoiogy indicated below, and i appropriate the refated valuation adjustment is recorded.

The valuation adjustments for impairment loss recognised under geodwif! may not be reversed in subsequent years.

Specifically, the Company recognises the goodwill arising from the merger by absorption of the company Grupo Bragados, S.A. under
this heading, as described in Note 1.

b) Computer software

The Company recognises under "Computer Software” the costs incurred in the acquisition and development of computer programs.
Computer software maintenance costs are recognised with a charge to the income statement for the year in which they are incurred.
Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over four years.

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Company tests goodwill for impairmeni to determine whether the recoverable amount of these
assets has been reduced to below their carrying amouni. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. The procedure impiemented by the Company’s management for the performance of this test is based on the recoverable values
calculated for each cash-generating unit. Annually, for each cash-generating unit, estimates of future profit and loss and investments are

obtained.
Qther variables influencing the calculation of recoverable vaiue are as follows:

- Type of discount fo be applied, which is understocd to be the average pondered weight of the capital cost, and the main
changes affecting its calculation being the cost of the liabilities and specific risks refating to the assets,

- Growth rate of the cash flows used to extrapolate the cash flow projections beyond the period coverad by the budgets or
estimates.

Projections are prepared on the basis of past experience and the best available estimates, taking inio account the information from
abroad,

In the event that an impairment loss is to be recegnised for a cash generating unit to which all or part of the goodwill was to be assigned,
the carrying amount of the goodwill relating to this unit is first lowered. If the impairmen foss exceeds this amount, then, in proporiion to
its carrying value, the carrying amount of the other assets of the cash generating units are lowered up to the limit of the higher of the
following: its fair value net of sales costs, it value in use or zero.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses (not permitted in the specific case of goodwill), the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit} is increased to the revised estimate of ils recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years. A reversal of

an impairment loss is recognised as income.

4.2 Property, piant and equipment

Property, piant and equipment are initially recegnised at acquisition or production cost and are subsequently reduced by the related
accumulated depreciation and by any impairment losses, recegnised as indicated in Note 4.1,

At year-end no indications of the impairment of the Company's property, plant and equipment were identified, and since the Company's
Directors estimate that the recoverable value of the assets is higher than their carrying amount, no impairment loss was recognised.
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Property. plant and equipment upkeep and maintenance expenses are recognised in the income statemant for the year in which they
are incurred. However, the costs of improvemenis leading to increased capacity or efficiency or to a lengthening of the usaful fives of the

assets are capialised,

Where the period required to put property. plant and equipment into operating conditions lasts more than one year, the capitalised costs
include the borrowing costs incusred prior to the entry into operation of the asset and generated by the supptier or relating to loans or
another specific or general type of external financing directly attributable io the acquisition or manufacturing thereof.

The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment by the siraight-line method at annual rates based on the years of estimated
useful life of the assets, the detail being as follows:

Years of
Estimated Useful

Life
Piant and machinery 3-18
Buildings and other structures 33-50
Transport equipment 5.10
Computer hardware 1-35
CQther property, plant and squipment 3-25

This heading also includes the property, plant and eguipment relating to the concession-for the construction and subsequent operation
of the Palacio Muniwcipal de Deportes from the City Councit of Huelva. This asset is fully depreciated.

4.3 Investment property

The heading "lnvestment Property” in the balance sheet includes the values of land, buildings and other structures maintained either for
the purpose of being leased or for cbtaining gains on their sale as the result of future increases in their respective market prices.

These assels are measured in accordance with the criteria indicated in Note 4.2 in relation to property, plant and equipment.
4.4 Leases

Finance lease obligations

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the {erms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental o
ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The Company had not entered into any
finance lease agreements at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008.

Operating leases
Where the Company acts as the lessor:
The income and expense arising from operating leases is credited or debited, respectively, to the income statement,

Also, the acquisition cost of the leased asset is recognised in the balance sheet according to its nature, increased by the directly
aflocable contract costs, which are recognised as an expense over the term of the contract, applying the same criteria used for the

recognition of income form leases.

Any cellection or payment that might be made when arranging an operating lease will be treated as a prepaid lease collection or
payment which will be allocated to profit or loss over the tease term in accordance with the time pattern in which the benefits of the

leased asset are provided or received.

When the Company acts as the lessee:
Expenses arising from operating leases are charged to the income statement in the year in which they are incurred,

Any collection or payment that might be made when arranging an operating lease will be treated as a prepaid lease collection or
payment which will be allocated tc profit or less over the lease term in accerdance with the time pattern in which the benefits of the

teased asset are provided or received.
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4.5 Financial instruments

4.5.1 Financial assets

Classification
The financia! assets held by the Company are classified into the following categories:

a) Loans and receivables: financial assets arising from the sale of goods or the rendering of services in the ordinary course of
the Company's business, or financial assets which, not having commercial substance, are not equity instrumenis or
derivatives, have fixed or determinabie paymenis and are not traded in an active market.

p) Heid-to-maturty investrnents: debt securities with fixed maturity and determinable cash flows, traded in an active markei, that
the Company has the intention and financial capacity 1o hold to maturity.

¢} Equily investments in Group companies, asscciates and muitigroup (jointly controlfed) companies: Groug companies are
deemed io De those related to the Company as a result of a relationship of control and asscciates are companies over which
the Company exercises significant influence. Additionally, multigroup companies include companies, which under an
agreement entered into, are jointly controlfed by one or more shareholders.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets: these include debt securilies and equity instruments of other companies that are not

classified in any of the aforementioned categories.

Initial recognition

Financial assets are initfally recognised at the fair value of the consideration given, plus any directly attsibutable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost.

Investments in Group companies, asscciates and muligroup companies are measured ab cost net, where appropriate, of any
accumulated impairment losses. These losses are calcuiated as the difference between the carrying amount of the investments and
their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair vaiue less costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flows
from the investment. Unless there is better evidence of the recoverable amount, it is based on the value of the equity of the investes,
adjusted by the amount of the unrealised gains existing at the date of measurement (including any goodwill).

The Company is the Parent of a Group of companies listed in Note 8.3. The financial staternents do not reflect the effect of applying
consolidation criteria in accerdance with Spanish GAAP. The main aggregates in the ACS Group's consolidated financial statements for
2009 and 2008 prepared in accordance with Final Provision Eleven of Law 62/2003, of 30 December, applying the International

Financial Repoiting Standards appraved by the European Union, are as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2009 2008
Total assets 31,754,213 51,398,365
Equity 4,591,503 9,913,040
- of the Parent Company 4,303,410 3,402,422
- of minorily interests 288,083 6,510,618
Revenue (%) 15,605,930 15,275,568
Profit for the year 2,147,115 2,638,731
- of the Parent Company 1,951,531 1,805,038
- of minerity interests 195,584 834,695

("} As a result of having identified the activity segment port and logistics services as a discontinued operation, reclassifications
were made in the income slatement presented for comparison purposes in 2008, and accordingly, it is not the same as the
income statement prepared and presented in the 2008 Gensofidated Financial Statements.
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Lastly, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value and the gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in equity untit the asset is disposed of or it is determined that it has become (permanently) impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equity are recognised in the net profit or loss for the year.

At teast at each reporting date the Company tests financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss for impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment is considered to exist when the recoverable amount of the financial asset is lower than its carrying
amount. When this occurs, the impairmant loss is recognised in the income statement.

With respect o any valuation adjustments related to trade and other receivables, in order to calculate such adjustments the Company
takes mto account the existence of events which might lead to a delay or a reduction in future cash flows that might be caused by the

debtor's insolvency.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, as in the case of firm sales, fransfers
of trade receivables in factoring transactions in which no credit or interest risk is retained, sales of financial assels in relation to which
repurchase agreements have been eniered into at fair value or securitizations of financial assets in which the assignor does not retain

subordinated financing or grant any type of guarantee or assume any other type of risk,

However, the Company does nof derecognise financial assets, and recognises a financial liability for an amount equat to the
consideration received where the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, as in the
case of draft discounting facilities, recourse factoring, the sale of financial assets in relation to which a repurchase agreement is entered
into at a fixed price or at the sale price plus interest, and the securitization of financial assets in which the assignor retaing subordinated
financing or other types of guarantees covering substantially all of the projected losses.

4.5.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabitities include accounts payable by the Company that have arisen from the purchase of goods or services in the normal
course of the Company's business and those which, not having commercial substance, cannot be classed as derivative financial

instruments.

Accounts payable are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, adjusted by the directly attributable transaction
costs, These liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Liabiity derivative financiai instruments are measured at fair value, following the same criteria as for financial assets held for trading

described in the previous section.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when the obligations giving rise to them cease to exist.

4.5,3 Equity Instruments

An equity instrument represents a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities,
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised in equity at the proceeds received, net of issue costs.

Treasury shares acquired by the Company during the year are recognised at the value of the consideration paid and are deductad
directly from equity. Gains and losses on the acquisition, sale, issue or retirement of treasury shares are recognised directly in equity

and in no case are they recognised in profit or loss.

4.5.4 Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge the risks to which its business aclivities, operations and future cash fiows
are exposed. Basically, these risks relate to changes in exchange rates and interest rates. The Company arranges hedging financial

instruments in this connection.

In order for these financial instruments to quaiify for hedge accounting, they are initially designated as such and the hedging relationship
is documented. Also, the Company verifies, both at inception and periodically over the term of the hedge (at ieast at the end of each
reporting peried), that the hedging relationship is effective, i.e. that it is prospectively foreseeable that the changes in the fair value or
cash flows of the hedged item (attributable to the hedged risk} will be almost fully cffset by those of the hedging instrumert and that,
retrospectively, the gain or loss on the hedge was within a range of 80-125% of the gain or loss on the hedged item.
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The Company uses hedges of the following types, which are accounted for as described below:

®  Fair value hedges: in this case, changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk are recognised in profit or loss.

¥ Cash flow hedges: in hedges of this nature, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that has been
determined to be an effective hedge is recognised temporarily in equity and is recognised in the income statement in the
same period during which the hedged item affects profit or loss, unless the hedge reiates to a ferecast transaction that results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or 2 non-financial liability, in which case the amounts recognised in equity are
included in the initiai cost of the asset or lishility when it is acquired or assumed.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Af that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the
forecasied transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expecied to occur, the net cumuiative gain or loss recognised in
equity is transferred to net profit or loss for the year.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value with unrealised

gains or losses reported in the income stalement.

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments is caiculated as follows:

- For derivales whose underlying is quoted in an organized markel, valuation is based on a Value at Risk {VaR) analysis, which
determines the asset's expected value, taking into consideration its exposure to risk for a certain confidence level on the basis of
market performance, the asset's characteristics and the potential loss arising under a scenario which is highly unlikely to occur.
The analysis is based on applying a normal distribution to the daily evelution of the asset’s price and the use of the expected
volatility required on the basis of the derivative's characteristics to establish the probabhitity associated to the required confidence
level. For the purposes of this calcufation, the periods required to unde this position without affecting the market are taken into
account. The ouistanding finance costs associated with each derivative evaluated is deducted from the values obtained.

- Derivatives not traded in organised markets are valued using normal financial market technigues, i.e., discounting the expacted
cash flows in the contract in view of its characteristics, such as the notional amount and the collection and payment schedule,
based on spot and forward market conditions at the reporting date. Interest rate swaps are measured using zere-coupen curves,
which is determined on the basis of the deposits and swaps traded at a given time through a bootstrapping process through
which the discount factors are oblained. For derivatives with caps and floors or combinations thereof, occasicnally tied te the
fulfiiment of special obligations, the interest rates used are the same as in the case of inlerest rate swaps. However, in order io
aliow for the random exercise of options, the Black-Scholes methodology is used, as is standard practice in the financial market.

4,6 |Inventories

Inventories are measured at the tower of the costs of purchase, production cost and net realisable value. Trade discounts, rebates and
other simifar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

Production cost comprises direct materiais and, where applicable, direct labour costs and manufacturing overheads.

Net reafisable value is the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling

and distribution.
The Company measures the value of its inventories using the weighted average cost method,

When the nel realisable value of inventories is fower than the cosis of purchase (or production cost), the Company makes the
appropriate adjustments, recognising them as an expense in the income statement,

4.7 Foreign currency transactions

The Company's functional currency is the euro. Therefore, transactions in currencies other than the eure are desmed to be “Foreign
Currency Transactions” and are recognised by applying the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction,
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At the end of each reporting pericd, monetary assets and liabilities dencminaled in foreign currencies are translated io eurcs at the rates
then prevailing. The resulting gains or losses are recognised directly in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

4.8 Income tax

Tax expense {tax income) comprises current tax expense (current tax income) and deferred tax expense (deferred tax income).

The current income tax expense is the amount payable by the Company as a result of income tax settlements for a given year, Tax
credits and cther tax benefits, excluding tax withholdings and pre-paymenis, and tax lass carryforwards from prios years effectively
offset in the current year reduce the current income tax expense.

The deferred tax expense or income relates to the recognition and derecognition of deferrad tax assets and liabilities. These include
temporary differences measured at the amount expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases, and tax foss and tax credit carryforwards. These amounts are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability Is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxahle temporary differences, except for these arising from the initial recognition of geodwill
or of other assets and liabiiities in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting profit (loss) nor taxable
profit (tax loss), and except for those associated with invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in which the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temperary difference will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is considered probable that the Company will have taxable profits in the future

against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabiiities arising from transactions charged or credited directly to equity are also recognised in equity.
The deferred tax assets recognised are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and the appropriate adjustmenis are made to

the extent that there are doubts as to their future recoverability. Also, unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised {o the extent that it has become probable that they will be recovered through future faxable

profits.

Singe 1 January 1999, the Company has filed consolidated tax returns and is the head of the tax group 30/99.

4.9 Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue and expenses are generally recognised on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goceds and services occurs,
regardiess of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received,

net of discounts and taxes.

Revenue from sales is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods sold have been transferrad to the
buyer, and the Comipany neither continues to manage the goods nor retains effective controt over themn,

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the
reporting peried, provided the outcome of the transaction can be esiimated reliably.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective inferest method and dividend income is recognised when the
sharehclder’s right to receive payment has been established. Interest and dividends from financial assets accrued after the date of

acquisition are recognised as income.

In accordance with the accounting principle of prudence, the Company only records realised profit at year-end, whereas foreseeable
contingencies and losses, inciuding possible losses, are recorded as soon as they become known (Notes 4.10 and 13.1).

4.10 Provisions and contingencies
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When preparing the financial statements the Company's Directors made a distinciion between:

a) Provisions: credit batances covering present obligations arising from past events with respect to which it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits that is uncerfain as to its amount and/er timing will be reguired to settle the

obligations.

b) Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future evants not whotly within the Company’s control.

The financial statements include all the provisions with respect to which it s considered that it is more likely than not that the obligation
wili have fo be settled. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, but rather are disclosed, unless the possibility

of an outflow in seftlement is considerad fo be remote.

Provisions are measured at the present value of best possible estimate of the amount required to settle or transfer the obligation, taking
into account the information available on the event and its consequences. Where discounting is used, adjustments made to provisions

are recognised as interest cost on an accrual basis.

The compensation o be received from a third party on settlement of the obiigaticn is recognised as an asset, providad that there are no
deubts that the reimbursement will take place, unless there is a legal relationship whereby a portion of the risk has been externalised as
a result of which the Company is not lizble; in this situation, the compensation will be taken into account for the purpose of estimating

the amount of the related provision that should he recognised.

4,11 Termination benefits

Under current legislation, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to employees terminated under certain conditions.
Therefore, termination benefits that can be reasenabiy quantified are recognised as an expense in the year in which the decision to
terminate the employment relationship is taken. The accompanying financial statements do not include any provision in this connection,

since no situations of this nature are expected to arise.

4.12 Environmental assets and iabilities

Environmental assets are deemed to be assets used on a lasting basis in the Company’s eperations whose main purpose is to minimise
environmental impact and protect and improve the environment, including the reduction or elimination of future poitution.

In view of their nature, the Company's activities did not have a significant environmental impact in 2009 or 2008.

4.13 Pension obligations

Pension fund

The Company is required, under specific conditions, to make monthly paymenis to a group of employees to supplement the mandatory
public sociat security system benefits for retirement, permanent disability, death of spouse or death of parent,

Additionally, the Company has obligations to ceriain members of the management {eam and the Board of Directors. These obligations
have been formalised through several group savings insurance policies which provide benefils in the form of a lump sum.

The most relevant features of these plans are detailed in Note 13.1.1.

Provision for third-party liability

The Company has recorded provisions for contingencies and charges relating to the estimated amount required for probable or certain
third-party liability and to obtligations outstanding whose exact amount cannot be determined or whose date of payment is uncertain,
since it depends on compliance with certain conditions. This provision is recerded when the liability or obligation arises,
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4.14 Share-based payment

The Company recognizes the services received as an expense when deliverad, on the basis of their nature, and also as an increase in
equity, since the transaction is always setiled with 2quity instruments.

The transactions are sattied with equily instruments, and accordingly, the services recognised as an increase in equity are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments transferred on the concession agreement date. This fair value is calculated on the basis of the
estimaied market value at the date of the plan cencession and is charged to income on the basis of the period in which these
instruments are consolidated or arz no longer revocable by the beneficiary.

The share-based payments of ACS, Actividades de Construccién y Servicios, S.A. are always seftled with equity instruments and are
made o Directors carrying out executive functions and to the Senior Executives of the ACS Group.

415 Joint ventures

The company accounts for its investments in Spanish UTEs (unincorperated joint ventures) by recognizing in its balance sheet the
proportion corresponding thereto, based on its ownership percentage, of the assets and liabilities jeintly controlled and incurred,
respectively. Likewiss, it recognises the proportion corresponding thereto of the expenses generated and incurred by the Joint venture
in the income stalement. Also, in the statement of changes in equity and in the cash flow statement, it includes the balances of the

corresponding preportion of the joint venture items

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the only UTE owned by the Company was UTE Dramar, which engages in contract works for Spanish
state ports, and the amounts retated thereto in the balance sheet and income statement are not material,

4.16 Related party transactions

The Company performs all its transactions with refated parties or an arm's length basis. Also, the transfer prices are adequately
supported and, therefore, the Company’s Directors consider that there are no material risks in this connection that might give rise to

significant liabilities in the future.

4.17 Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

The Company classifies a non-current asset or disposat group as held for sale when the decision to sell them has been taken and the

sale is expected to occur within twelve months.
These assets or disposal groups are measured at the tower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated, but rather at the end of each reporting period the related valuation
adjustmants are made to ensure that the carrying amount is not higher than fair value less costs to seif.

Income and expenses arising from non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale which do not qualify for
classification as discontinued operations are recognised under the related heading in the income statement on the basis of their nature.

4.18 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is considered to be any business unit which has been sold or disposed of by other means, or ciassified as held
for sale, and among other conditions, it must represent a line of business or significant area which can be considered o be separate

from the others.

For these types of operations, the Company includes under a single heading "Profit for the Year from Discontinued Operations Net of
Taxes" in the income statement, both the profit or loss for the year from the discontinued operations and the profit or loss after taxes
recagnised at fair value net of sales costs or the costs relating fo the disposal of the items comprised by the discontinued operations. In
this connection, as a result of the decision to sell the whole of the ownership interest in Unién Fenosa, S.A. held by the ACS Group, this
sale was deemed to meet the requirements for classification as a discontinued operatien. The most significant matters relating to this

transactiion are indicated in Note 11.

5.- Intangible assets
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The changes in this balance sheet heading in 2009 and 2008 were as foilows (in theusands of euros):

oot | Addtions | TUUCe | Additions | oes
Cost:
Goodwili 631,855 - 531,855 - 631,858
Computer Seftware 3.232 - 3.232 1 3,233
Total cost 635,087 - 635,087 1 635,088
Accumulated amortisation:
Computer Software {3.225) {5) (3,230) (1) {3.231)
Total accumulated amortisation {3,225) (5 (3.230) {1} {3,23%)
Total net cost 631,862 (5} 631.857 - 831,857

At the end of 2009 the Company had fully amortised intangible assets slill in use relating to computer software whose gross carrying
value amounted to EUR 3,223 thousand {EUR 3,221 theusand in 2008}.

Al the end of 2009 and 2008, the Company had no material firm commitments for the purchase of sofiware.
Goodwill is the only asset with an indefinite usefut life held by the Company.

There was no change in the batance of “Goodwill" in 2009 and 2808, the detail of which is as follows (in thousands of euros):

Ending Balance

Gross goodwill 824,158
Accumulated valuation adjustments (192,301)
Total Goodwill 631,855

The goodwitl arose from the merger with Grupo Dragados, S.A. in 2003 regarding the excess of paid value on fop of the value of the
asscts on the acquisition date and is mainly allocated to the construction area and industrial area cash generating units, the parents of
which are Dragados, S.A ard ACS, Servicios Comunicaciones y Energia, S.L., respectively.

As discussed in Note 4.1, in both 2008 and 2009 the Company assessed the recoverability of this goodwill by means of the
carrespending imparment test.

For the geodwill of these cash generating units, the cash flow projections of the aforementioned businesses were used in addition to the
calcuiation of the residual value resulling from projecting the cash flow for the tast year at a growth rate of 1.5%, a rafe lower than the
normal growth of business. The aforementioned cash flows were discounted at a discount rate of 6.3%, generally based on the
weighted average cost of capital (WACC), before tax, for this type of assets. Additionally, companies with similar activities were
analysed to check the rates used against those used by analysts for the purpose of estimating the differences which might be identified.

Also, in order to obtain the cash flows to be discounted, the hypothases relating to the degree of leveraging and interest rates of the
equity and borrowed funds considered in the business plan of the cash generating unit served as a basis for calculating the discount

rate.

In the Directors' opinion, there are no reasonable changes in the main hypotheses of the impairment test which might give rise to a
probiem relating to the recoverabllity of the goodwill,

6.- Property. plant and equipment

The changes in 2009 and 2008 in “Property, Plant and Equipment” in the balance sheet and the maost significan{ information aflecting
this heading were as foliows (in thousands of euros):
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Balance at Additions ! Charges Disposals or Balance at
d1/01/2009 for the Year reductions 341212009
Cost
tand 385 - - 385
Plant 1,360 - - 1,380
Machinery 152 144 - 296
Tools 500 - 81} 439
Transpot eguipment 451 - (14} 437
Other 21,514 2,771 . 24,285
Total cost 24,372 2.915 (75} 27,212
Armortisatron and depreciatien charge
Piant {1,297) {16} - {1,307}
Machinery {84) {37} - {121)
Tools (388} {12} B {400}
Transport equipment {353) {27} 14 {366)
Other {13,557) {1.118) - {14,675)
Total amortisation {15,679) {1,204) 14 (16,869}
Total net cost 8,683 1,714 {61} 10,343
Baiance at Additions f Charges Disposals or Balance at
01/01/2008 for the Year reductions 31/12/2008
Cost
Land 395 - - 385
Plant 1,369 - - 1,360
tachinery 113 RE] - 152
Toocls 437 63 - 500
Transport equipmaent 451 - - 451
Cther 19,183 2,360 (2%} 21,514
Fotal cost - 21,939 2,462 (29) 24,372
Amortisation and depreciation
chiarge
Piant (1,286} (10) m (1.287)
Miachinery (63) (21} - (84}
Tools {364) {25) 1 (388}
Transpori equipment (321} (32) - (353}
Other (13,151) (979) 573 {13,557}
Tetal amortisation (15,185) {1,067} 573 {15,679}
Total net cost 6,754 1,385 544 8,693

in 2009 the Company acquired items of preperty, plant and equipment fram Group companies amounting to EUR 1,937 thousand (EUR
1,238 thousand in 2008), relating to improvements in the registered office.

I 2009 and 2008 the Company did not capitalise any finance costs under "Property, Plant and Equipment”.

The Company had no property, plant and equipment located abroad at the end of 2009 and 2008 and had no firm commitments for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

At the end of 2009 the Company had fully depreciated items of propenrty, ptant and equipment (none refating to construction) still in use,
amounting to EUR 10,224 thousand {EUR 10,048 thousand in 2008}.

The Company takes out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property, plant and equipment are subject. At the end
of 2008 and 2008 the property, plant and equipment were fully insured against these risks,

7.- investment property

The investment included under this heading in the balance sheet relates to fully occupied offices rented to Group companies.

In 2009 the income arising from rent on investment properly owned by the Company amounted to EUR 122 thousand (EUR 116
thousand in 2008}, and all relating operating costs were charged to the lessee.

Al the end of 2009 and 2008 there were no restrictions on new property investments, the income arising from such investments or on
the gains on their possible disposal.
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8.- Laases

Operating leases

The Company, as operating lessor, has a lease with a Group company, per the lease agreement in force and without taking future
changes in rent into account, amounting to EUR 122 thousand {EUR 116 thousand). This agreement matures annrually and is
autormnaticaily renewabie, except in the case of notice of termination by the parties thereto {Note 7).

No contingent rent was paid in 2009 and 2008.

As lessee, the most significant operating lease agreements entered into by the Company at the end of 2008 and 2008 relate to the
lease of officas and mature in 2012. The annual minimum lease payments net of increases in retation to the CPI, the effact of shared

expenses and associated taxes, amounted to EUR 7,443 thousand. Of this amount, EUR 5,232 thousand is charged to various ACS
Group companies annuaily In relation fo subleases.

9.- Financial assets {(non-current and current

9.1 Non-current financial assets

The batance of "Non-Current Financial Assets" at the end of 2009 and 2008 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

Non-Current Financial Instruments
Class
Equity instruments Loans, Derivatives and Gther Total

Category 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Loans and receivables - - 1,056 720 1,056 720
Available-for-sale financia! assels R

- Measured at fair volue 1,716,000 - - - 1,710,000 -

- Measured at cost 2,788 2,674 - - 2,788 2,674
Totat 1,712,788 2,674 1,056 720 1,7€3,844 3,394

The most significant addition in 2009 relates to the effect of the novalion of the equity swap over 256,371,800 shares, which represents
4.88% of ine share capital of iberdrola, S.A. at the beginning of the year (Note 10.2). Although this ownership interest was considered to
he strategic for the Company, it was nof considered to have a significant influence and therefore, it was recognised in accordance with
the rule for recognition and measurement 9 of the SNCA as an “Available-for-Sale Financial Asset’. In accordance with the
measurement bases, these assets are measured at fair value, and any changes in this value are recognised directly in equity.

The dividends received in 2009 from lberdrola, S.A. amounted fo EUR 83,833 thousand.

The detait, by maturity, of "Loans and Receivables" at 31 December 2009 and 2008, is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2009
2014 and
2011 2012 2013 subsequernt Total
years
Loans and receivables 35 1,021 - - 1,056
Total 35 1,021 - - 1,056
2008
2013 and
2010 2011 2012 Subsequent Total
Years
Loans and receivables 35 - 685 - 720
Total 35 - 685 - 720

The difference between their face value and fair value are not material.
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Impairment:
In 2008 and 2008 the Company did not recognise any reduction for impairment in its non-current financial assets.

In relation to the ownership interest in lberdrofa, S.A., a company traded through the Spanish compuierized trading system, since the
market price stood at EUR 6.43 in the last quarter and EUR 8.67 at the end of the reporting period, amounts which were lower than the
acquisition cost, the ACS Group considered it to be possible for sigas of impairment to exist and performed the corresponding test.

For the purpose of performing this analysis the Company used the dividend discount method on the basis of public analyst information
for 2009 to 2013 which is less than 180 days old, relating to the net profit, “pay out”, residua! value growth rate and discount rate to be

applied.

The main variables used were as foliows:

berdrola, S.A.
Nat profit 2,758 {2009) - 3.796 (2014)
Growtlh ) 3%
Average pay out 58.04%
Discount rate 7%

(™) Although historical growth slood at 22% and the grth foreseen by analysts for the next four years is 5%, in view of
the economic environment. the Company chose (o use a 3% residual value growth rate to calculate the impairment of the

invesiment in Ibergrola, S.A.

In accerdance with the above, the Directors do not consider factors to exist giving rise to impairment at the end of the reporting period,
since its fair value was caiculated to be above the cost of the ownership interest. The impairment test is highly sensitive to changes in
the discount rate and the -residual value growth raie, meaning that changes of cerfain significance might lead to the recognition of

impairment.

9.2 Current financial assets

The balance of "Current Financial Assets” at the end of 2009 and 2008 is as follows (in thousands of 2uros):

Current Financial Assets
Class Loans, Derivatives and Other Total
Category 2009 2008 2009 2008
Loans and receivables 1,871,649 1,093,092 1,871,649 1,093,992
Total 1,871,649 1,093,992 1,871,649 1,093,992

Of this amount, EUR 250,493 thousand relates to outstanding dividends accrued at 31 December 2009 from Group companies (EUR
333,175 thousand at 31 December 2008),

Additionally, this batance includes EUR 712,052 thousand (EUR 760,812 thousand at 31 December 2008) relafing to deposits made by
the Company to meet coverage ratios for derivative financial instruments {particularly equity swaps) in relation to the financing obtained
for the acquisition of the ownership interest included under the heading "Available-for-Sale Financial Assels". These deposits were
obtained by means of current financing provided by financial instifutions and by Group companies. The remaining balance of this
heading relates to current deposits in financiaf entities without any restriction as to their use.

Impairment:
In 2069 and 2008 the Company did not recognise any reduction for impairment in its current financial assats.

9.3 Non-current investments in Group companies, muitigroup companies and associates

Equity Instruments:

The most significant information relating to Group companies, muitigroup companies and associates af the end of 2009 is as follows:
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The changes in the aquity instruments of Group companies and associates in 2009 were as follows:

Thousands of Euros
ftem Baginning balance Cost Aliowance Ending Balance
Net Ch A t Net
Cost Ailowance Additicns | Transfers | Disposals arges TOUTRS Cost Ailowance ¢
Balance for the year used Balance
Group 1,664,987 (92,772) | 1,672,215 59 - {127,479) (55} B 1,537,567 (82.831) | 1,444,728
Asscciales 1,288,711 -1 1,289,711 - - (27.989) - 1,299,711 (27.989) | 1,271,722
Total 2,964,693 (92,772) 1 2,871,926 59 . (127,479 (28,048) - 2,837,278 | {120,820) | 2,716,458

The most significani changes in 2008 were as follows:

- The divestment amounting to EUR 127,479 thousand relaiing to the reduction of the investment in ACS, Servicios ¥ Concesiones, S.L.
as a result of an extraordinary dividend received by the Company as a result of the refund of the share premium.

In reiation o the ownership interest in Hochlief, A.G., a company fisted on the Frankfurt stock exchange, since the market price stood

at EUR 54.31 in the last quarter and EUR 53.55 at the end of the reporting period, amounis which were lower than the acquisition cost,
the Company considered it to be possible for signs of impairment to exist and performed the corresponding impairment test.

For the purpose of performing this test, the Company used public information from market analysts relating to the target price of the
share of the Hochtief group. This calculation includes the valuation of the German group's different business segments, identified as
concession, services and real estate, and construction Europe, America and Asia/Pacific.

The vaiue of the aforementioned Business segments was calculated based on the related activity, using the cash flow discount
associaled with the business plans presanted by the Group in the case of the construction and real estate segments and the expected
cash flows to shareholders until the end of the concession period in the case of concession activily, as well as performance and
markel price in the case of subsidiaries listed on stock markets.

As a result of this calculation, the analysts' market price gave rise {o the existence of impaiment in the ownership interesi of
approximately EUR 8 per share, and accordingly, the Company recognised a provision amounting to EUR 27,889 thousand relating to
the impairment of the ownership interest held at the end of the reporting period in Hochtief, A.G.

The changes in the equily instruments of Group companies and associates in 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of Euros

It Beginning balance Cost Allowance Ending Balance
em
Net ; . Charges Amounts Net
Cost Allowance Additions | Transfers | Disposals Cost Allowance

Balance for the year used Balance
Group 2,227,037 {96,384) | 2,130,652 959,725 (382,212) | {1,135,583) {33} 3,645 | 1,664,987 (92,772) } 1,672,215
Associates 1,741,019 -| 1,741,018 421,723 - (863,033) - - 11,298,711 -1 1,298,711
Total 3,968,058 (96,384) | 3,871,671 1,381,450 {382,212) | {2,002,596) {33) 3,645 | 2,964,698 {92,772} | 2,871,926

The most significant transactions performed in 2008 were as follows:

~ Sale of the Company’s ownership interest in Scutvias Autoestradas da Beira Interior, S.A., afier having obtained authorisation from the

concassion provider and the banks financing the investment, giving rise {0 a gain before taxes amounting to EUR 48,349 thousand,

~ Sale to Aberlis Infraestructuras, S.A. and io a Santander Group venture capital fund of the whole of its ownership interest in Invin, S.L.,
which has holdings in the Chilean 1ol roads, Rutas del Pacifico, S.A. and Autopista Central after having obtained authorisation from
the authorities and banks financing the investmeni. This transaction amounted lo EUR 727,874 thousand and gave rise to gains
before taxes amounting to EUR 547,450 thousand.
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- In January the Company acquired 14,733,966 shares representing 4.83% of the share capital of Unidn Fenosa, S.A., foilowing which,
ils direcl and indirect ownership interest amounted {0 45,.31% at this date.

- On 30 July 2008 the Company and other ACS Group subsidiaries entered into an agreement with Gas Najural SDG, S.A, for the sale
of the whole of its 45.31% ownership interest in the share capital of Unién Fenosa, S.A.

In relation to the Company, the transaction was performed in the following phases:

1. On 1 August 1.45% of the share capital of Unidn Fencsa, S.A. was {ransferred at the price of EUR 18,33 per share, which
amounted to EUR 243,272 thousand and gave rise o gains net of taxes amounting to EUR 91,296 thousand, recognised

under "Profit after Tax from Discontinued Operations”.

2 The remaining 3.23% was sold on 26 February 2009 (following aporoval of the business concentration of Gas Natural and
Unién Fenosa by the competent authorities) for EUR 533,330 thousand (equivaient to EUR 18.05 per share, net of the EUR
0.28 per share dividend received from Unidn Fenosa in January 2009).

For this reason, the energy line of business was considerad lo be a discontinued operation in 2009 and 2008.

-+ On 17 March 2008, ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, 8 A. purchased % of the shares of Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A.
for a fotat EUR 134 million, increasing its direct cwnership interest to 25.83% of the company's share capital. Subsequently and as
a result of its investment maragement strategy, in 2008, 30,000,060 (4.48%) and 31,920,000 shares (5%) of Aberlis
Infraestructuras, S.A. were sold to Villa Aurea, S.L. and Aurea Fontana, S.L., respectively, with a carrying amount of EUR 321,694
thousand and EUR 359,385 thousand, respectively. Addifionally, 16,000,000 shares (2.39%) of Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A. were
contributed to Aurea Fontana, S.L. for EUR 172,104 thousand.

— in December 20C8, ACS, Aclividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A executed the cption to sellle in shares the equity swap it
had entered inté on shares of Hochtief, A.G. representing 4.9% of its share capital, increasing the ACS Group's ownership inferest

in this company to 29.98%.

Of the interest in Group companies, associales and financial assets hefd for sale, the following are directly or indirectly listed on the stock

exchange:
Evros per Share
Company Average fourth 2008 year-end Average fourth 2009 year-end
quarter of 2008 quarter of 2009
Aberiis Infraestructuras, S.A, 13,00 12,80 15.37 15.72
foerdrola, S.A. 5.87 6.54 6.43 5.67
Hoohtief, A.G. 27.38 3574 54.31 53.55

At 31 December 2008 and 2009, although the market price of iberdrola, S.A. was lower than their acquisition cost, the Company did not
consider it necessary o recognise any provision for the impairment of these holding since the recoverabie value of these investments,
calculated based on the cash flow discounis or dividends expected to be received in accordance with these companies' business plans,

is higher than their carrying value (Note 9.1).
At 31 December 2009, the Company’s ownership interest in Hochtief A.G. was parially provisioned as indicated above.

In 2008 the Company reversed the provision made in prior years in relation lo Residencial Monte Carmelo, S.A. and Caridtide, 5.A. since
it expects its investment to be recovered given that they are vehicles for investmenis which will generate sufficient cash flows in the
future for this purpose. In 2009, except for the aforementioned provision, there were no changes in balance included under "Provisions":

At 31 December 2009, the Campany had pledged the shares of Residencial Monle Carmelo, S.A. {company with an ownership interest
in Iberdrola, S A.), and the shares of Cariatide, S.A. {company with an indirect ownership interest in Hochtief, A.G.).

At 31 December 2008, the Company had no firn commitments to purchase or sell financial assets other than those relating to the sale of
Union Fenosa, S.A., which were already recognised as a non-current asse! held for sale. [n this connection, the Company assigned a
Group company the amount relating to ail future receivables on the sale of the ownership interest in Unién Fenosa, S.A. This transaction
became effective in 2009, with the final sale of the ownership interest in Unidn Fenosa, S.A. At 31 December 2009 the Company had no

firm purchase or sale commitment.
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Non-Current Loans to Group Companies:

The detail of loans to Group companies at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Company Thousands of Euros

2009 2008
PR Pisa, S AU - 914,855
Residencial Monte Carmelo, S.A. 638,158 607,368
Casiatide, S.A. 366,928 345,836
Yilla Aurea, S.L. 214,102 -
Aurea Fontana, S.L. 633,210 154,216
ACS Telefonia Movil, 5.L. 171,397 42,515
Novewila, S.A. - 3.138
Total 2,023,995 2,067,979

The lpan granted 1o PR Pisa, 5.AU, in 2008 relates to the contribution made lo this company to finance the acguisition of & 32.07%
ownership interest in Unidn Fenosa, SA. It has a fixed interest rate and matures on 31 December 2010. The related interest is
capitalised annually. This loan was repaid on 31 December 2009 due {0 the sate of Unidn Fenosa, S.A.

The amounl granted to Residencial Monie Carmelo, S.A. relates to the contribution made to this company 1o finance the purchass of
6.87% of lherdrola, S.A. This financing is provided in the form of a participating loan, which earns interest at both a fixed and floating rate
and interest is capitalised annuafly. The loan matures on 31 December 2011,

The loan granted to Cariatide, S.A. relates to the contribution made to this company as a participating foan for the financing of the
acquisition of 25.08% of Hochtief, A.G. This loan eams interest al both a fixed and floafing rate, on the basis of the company's net profit,
and interest is capialised annuaily. This foan matures on 31 October 2012.

The amount granted to Villa Aurea, S.L. relates 10 a credit fine of up to EUR 400 miflion maturing on 6 August 2012, at an inlerest rate
tred to Euribor, whose purpose was to finance its acquisitions of lberdrola, S.A. and Abertis Infraestruciuras, S.A.

The amount granied to Aurea Fontana, S.L. relates lo a credit line of up o EUR 860 millicn maturing on 7 July 2012, at an interest rate
tizd to Euribor, whose purpose was o finance its acquisition of Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A.

The amount loaned to ACS Telefonia Mavil, S.L. relates to the following;

- A credit line maturing in September 2012, bearing an interest rate tied fo euribor, the balance of which was EUR 108,811
thousand at 31 December 2009. The related interest accrues to the principal.

- Several loans maturing between 2015 and 2024, bearing floating interest rates, the detail of which is as follows:

Grant Date Thousands Maturity Date
of Euros

June 200% 13,972 June 2021
Pecember 2001 9,980 December 2021
January 2002 8,960 January 2022
April 2002 5,988 April 2022
February 2004 2,595 February 2024
March 2008 20,171 March 2015
Total 62,686

All of these fvans were granied to contribute funds to its investee Company Xfera Maviles, S.A.
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9.4 Disclosures on the nature and level of risk of financial instruments

9.4.1Qualitative disclosures

The Company’s financial risk management is ceniralised in #ts General Corporate management, which has established the mechanisms
reqguired to conirol exposure to interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations and credit and liquidity risk. The main financial risks affecting

the Company are as follows:

a) Creditrisk:

in general, the Company holds its cash and cash equivalents al banks with high credit ratings.

Also, it shoutd be noled that the Company does not have a significant concentration of credit risk exposure 1o third parties.
b)  Liguidity risk:

For the purpose of ensuring liquidity and enabling it io meet the payment obligations arising from its business activities, the Company
has the cash and cash equivalents disclosed in its balance sheet, together with the cradit and financing facilities detailed in Note 14,

c}  Market risk (includes inlferest rate, foreign currency and price risks).

Both the Company's cash and cash equivalents and its financial liabilities are exposed to interest rate risk, which could have an adverse
effect on iis financtal reslts and cash flows. Censequently, the Company's policy is to always have the majorily of its financial Habilities

bear interes! at fixed rales.

In view of the nature-of the Company's business aclivities, ils is not exposed to foreign currency or other price risks, except for those
indicaied in Notes 10.2 and 18.2 in relation to ifs investments in iberdrola, S.A. and Hochtief, A.G.

9.4.2Quantitative disclosures

a) Interestrale risk:

At 31 December 2009 and 2008 the Company had a syndicated loan amounting to a face value of EUR 1,500,000 thousand and
maturing in 2018, whose entity agent is Caja Madrid., The Company has enfered into a derivales agreement (inlerest rate swap) to hedge
the interest rate risk. This hedge invoives 79% of the Company's non-current bank borrowings.

This cash flow hedge is detailed in Note 10.

by  Liquidity risk:

On 30 July 2009, in order to repay its existing syndicated loan amounting to EUR 1,500,000 thousand and maluring in 2010, the
Company enfered into a syndicated loan, in which the agent entity was Caja Madrid, totalling EUR 1,594,000 thousand and maturing on
22 July 2012. With this transaction, the Company assured the liquidity of its transactions.

10.- Derivative financial instruments

10.1 Hedging instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments 10 hedge the risks to which its business activities, operations and future cash flows
are exposed. Within the framework of these transactions, the Company has arranged a hedging instrument, and specifically an interest

rate swap for cash flows.
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Fair value
(thousands of euros)
tnefiicient portion
Amount contracted Marurit recegnised in the
ity E—_— I
Classificaticn Type {thousands of 4 income statement Liabilities | Liabilities
date 2008 2009
euros) {thousands of
euros)
Interest rale Fioating to
interestrate swap i 1,500,000 22/07/2010 - 81,562 27.,44C
hedge fixad

The hedging instrument matures in the same year in which casb flows are projected and in which they are expected io affect profit and

loss.

The Company has complied with the requirements detailed in Note 4.5.4 on measurement tases in order {o be able to classify the
financial insiruments as hedges. Specifically, these instruments were formally designated as hedges and the hedges were assessed as

being effective.

10.2 Derivative Instruments not qualified as hedges

At 31 December 2008, the Company had entered into derivatives agreements, and specifically, an eqguity swap on shares of lberdrola,
§.A. affecting 4.88% of ils share capital at the end of 2009, which may be settled in cash or shares at the option of ACS Actlividades de
Conslruecidn y Servicios. 8.A. These agreements malure on 14 January 2009 and 13 March 2009, and are renewable by agreement of
the parties, the latter being required to continue to meet certain ratios (Note 18.2}. The changes in the fair value of these instruments
were charged to the income statement in 2009 with a net loss of EUR 648,185 thousand recognised under the heading "Changes in the
Fair Value of Financial Instruments”. The agreement maturing on 14 January 2008 for 0.068% of the shares was sellled by the physical

handing over of the shares at the maturity date.

Consequently, the Company recognised EUR 533,522 thousand relating {o their fair value at thal date under "Non-Current Liabilities
Relating to Financial Derivatives” in the balance sheet at 31 December 2008,

In the beginning of 2009, the Company entered into a novation of the equity swap for 4.881% of the shares of fbergdrela, S.A. This
novation exiends (he period for the exercise ¢f the equily swap {which is currently March 201 1); the exercise of voting rights inherent to
the underlying shares shall correspond to ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A. and accordingly, the financial institution
commits to being represented at all Shareholders’ Meetings held by Iberdrola, S.A. by the representative appointed by ACS, who is
entitled to vote freely. The equity swap may now only be setiied by the physical handing over of shares, unless the market price of the
share is less than EUR 4 in which case ACS, Actividades de Construceién y Servicios, 5.A. may settle the swap by means of differences.
Accordingly, ACS, Aclividades de Consiruccidén y Servicios, S.A. now directly and indirecily holds 12.0% of the voting rights in the
electricily uiility. As a result of this novation, the Company recognised ihe investment through an equity swap at fair value on the asset
side of iis balance sheel under "Non-Current Financial Assets-. Equity instruments” and the financing relating to this asset were
recognised under "Bank Borrowings" in the accompanying balance sheet at 31 December 2009 (Notes 9.1 and 14).

Additionally, non-hedging derivative instruments worthy of mention include those relating to share option plans. As discussed in Note
13.1.12, the Group has granted share option plans to certain Managers and Direclors carrying out executive functions.

The obligations arising from these plans have been externalised and transferred fo a financial institution. In refation to these obligations,
the financial instiiution has a put option hedging the risk that the value of the share aption will be less than the exercise price.

Since this derivalive is a fair value hedge, the hedged item is measured in the same manner as the hedging instrument and the effect is
recognised in the income statement. The changes in the fair value of these derivatives recorded with a charge (o the income statement
gave rise to a gain of EUR 2,986 thousand at 31 December 2008 (losses of EUR 2,582 thousand at 31 December 2008). Al 31
December 2009 their fair value amounted to EUR 613 thousand (EUR 3,584 thousand in 2008).
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11.- Non-current assets held for sale

On 30 July 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with Gas Natural SDG., 5.A. for the sale of the whole of its ownership interesi
in Umén Fenosa, S.A,, al the price of EUR 18.33 euros per share. As explained in Mote 9.3, the requirements contained in the Spanish
Naticnal Chart of Accounts for these assets te be classified as non-current assets held for sale are met. Therefore, the appropriate
reclassifications were made at the end of 2008 to recognise it as a discontinued cperation.

Foilowing is a defailed description of ihe assets classified under this heading:

Thousands of Euros
Investment in Unidn Fencsa, S.A. 382,213
Interim dividend 8,273
Total 390,486

The effect of these reclassifications on the income statement and cash flow statement is detailed in Nole 19.

There are no liabifities asscciated with these assets since the liabilities incurred for ihe acquisition of the ownership interest in Unidn

Fenosa, S.A. are not linked thereto,

At 31 December 2009 there were no assets in this situation since the sale was completed in February 2009,

12.- Equity

In 2008 capital was reduced by means of the redemption of treasury shares on two occasions. In June 2008 and as resolved by the
General Shareholders’ Meeting of ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A., 17,482,707 treasury shares (4.954%) were
redeemed for a par value of EUR 8,742 thousand, thereby reducing the share capital from 352,873,134 {o 335,320,427 shares. In
December 2008 and as resoived by the Extraordinary General Sharehotders' Meeting of ACS, Aclividades de Construccion y Servicios,
S5.A. held on 3 December 2008, 16,746,453 treasury shares (4.993%) were redeemaed for a par value of EUR 8,373 thousand, thereby

reducing the share capite! from 335,390,427 to 318,643,974 shares.

In 2009, as resolved by the General Shareholders' Meeting held on 25 May 2609, the Company redeemed 3,979,380 treasury shares,
and therefore the share capitatl stood al EUR 157,332,297 corresponding to 314,664,594 fully subscrived and paid shares of EUR 0.5
par value each, all of the same class and with the same voting and economic rights.

The shares of ACS, Actividades de Construccion vy Servicies, S.A, are fisted on the Madrid, Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia Stock
Exchanges and traded through the Spanish computerised trading system.

At 31 December 2009, the sharehotders with an ownership interest of over 10% in the Company's share capital were Cerporacion
Financiera Atba, S.A. with an ownership inferest of 23.48%, Corporacion Financiera Alcor, $.A. with an ownership interest of 13.86% and
Inversiones Vesan, S.A. with an ownership inlerest of 12.34%.

In accordance with Article 153.1.b) and 2 of the Consolidaled Companies Law, the General Shareholders' Meeling held on 25 May 2009
authorized the Company's Board of Direclors to ingrease capital by up to half the Company's share capital at the date of this resolution
on one of more occasions, and at the dale, in lhe amount and under lhe conditions freely agreed in each case, within five years following
25 May 2009, and without having previcusly submitted a proposal to the General Shareholders’ Meeling. Accerdingly, the Beard of
Directars may set the terms and conditions under which capital is increased, as well as the fealures of the shares, investors and markels
at which the increases are aimed and the issue procedure; freely offer the unsubscribed shares in the preferential subscription period;
and in the event of incomplele subscriplion, cancel the capital increase or increase capita! solely by the amount of the subscribed shares.

The capital increase or increases may be carried out through the issue of new shares, either ordinary, without voting rights, preference or
recoverable. The new shares shall be payable by means of monetary contributions equat to the par value of the shares and any share

premium which may be agreed.
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In accordance with Article 156.2 of the Consolidated Cormnpanies Law, the Board of Directors was expressly empowered o exciude
preferential subscription rights in full or in part in relation 1o all or some of Ihe issues agreed under the scope of this authorisation. where
it is in {he interest of the company and as long as the par value of ihe shares to be issued plus any share premium agreed is equal to the
fair value of the Company's shares based on a repert 1o be drawn up at the Board's request, by an independent auditor olher than the
Company's auditor. which is appointed for this purpose by the Spanish Mercantiie Regster on any occasien in which the power to

axclude preferential subscription rights is exercisad.

Additionally, the Company's Board of Directors is authorised to request the listing or delisting of any shares issued, in Spanish or foreign
organised secondary markets.

Also, in accordance with applicable legislalion, the General Shareholders' Meeting held on 25 May 2009 rescived to delegate to the
Board of Directors the power to issue fixed income securities, either simple and exchangeable or convertible, as well as warranis on the
Company's newly issued shares or shares in circulation, Securities may be issued on one or more accasions within five years following
the resolution date The total amouni of the issue or issues of securities, plus the total number of shares listed by the Company, plus the
total number of shares listed by the Company and ouistanding at the issue of the date may not exceed a maximugm limit of eighty percent
of the equity of ACS Actividades de Construccién y Servicios, SA. according to the latest approved halance sheet

12.1 Legal reserve

Under the Consolidated Companies Law, 10% of net profit for each year must be transferred to the legal reserve uniit the balance of this
reserve reaches at least 20% of the share capital. The legal reserve can be used to increase capitat provided that the remaining reserve
balance does not fall below 10% of the increased share capital amount. Except as menticned above, unlil the legal reserve exceeds 20%
of share capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient olher reserves are not available for this purpose.

At the end of 2009 and 2008 the balance of this reserve had reached the legally required minimum.

12.2 Goodwili reserve

In accordance with the Consolidated Companies Law, since goodwill is recegnised on the asset side of the balance sheel, as part of the
distribution of profit for each year, an amount equal to at least five percent of the goodwill recorded must be allocated 1o a restricted
reserve. in the event that no or insufficient profit is earned, unresfricled reserves are to be used for this purpose (Note 3). At 31
December 2009 the balance of this heading amounted to EUR 41,208 thousand.

12.3 Limits on the distribution of dividends

[n Note 3 the inferim dividend paid and the proposed distribution of profit is indicated, and includes the allocation made 1o a restricted

reserve in relation to goodwiil.

12.4 Treasury shares

The changes in "Treasury Shares” in 2609 and 2008 were as follows:

2009 2008
Number of shares Tho;&;arr;gs of Number of shares Tho;suz:g:s of
Al beginning of year - - 11,941,061 616,341
Purchases 7,881,082 261,787 22,718,071 688,345
Sales (4,601,702} (130,598) (429,972} (13,553)
Redemption July 2002/ July 2008 (3,979,38G) (131,189) (17,482,707) (715,898)
Redemption December 08 - - (16,746,453) (475,235)
At end of year - - - -




13.1 Provisions

The detail of provisions in the balance sheet at the end of 2009 and 2008, and of ihe main changes therein during the year is as follows

(in thousands of auros)

200%
Non-current provisions Balance at Charges for the Batance at
Reversals
0140172609 year 311212009
Liabilities ang taxes 68,285 12,700 {27} 80,958
Total non-current provisions 68,285 12,700 (27} 80,958
2009
Current provisions Baiance at Charges for the Balance at
Amounts used
01/01/2009 year 311212008
Trade receivabies 11,165 1,800 (685) 12,280
Total current provisions 11,165 1,300 (685} 12,280

The Company has recorded provisions relating to the estimated amount required for probable or cerain third-party hability and to
obligaiions ouistanding whose exact amount cannot be determined or whose dale of payment is uncertain, since it depends on
compliance with certain conditions. These liabifities include, inter alia, the provision relating to the uncertain amount of tax obligations
which depend on the final decisions handed down in relation thereto. This provision is recorded when the related liability matures.

Also in 2009, the Company reassessed the risks associated with the current provisions as well as the time frame in which cutflows of
cash may anse in relation thereto, and accordingly, provisions were made amounting te approximately EUR 13 million in 2009.

Additionally, and in accordance with the cpinion of the external lawyers responsible for the legal aspects of this matter, the Company
considers that there is no economic risk relating to the lawsuit filed by Beliden-Apirsa in 2004. In relation to this matter, the Madrid Court
of First Instance and the Madrid Provincial Appeal Ceurl dismissed the lawsuit filed by Boliden-Apirsa. An appeal against this judgement

has been filed before the Supreme Court.
13.1.1 Obligations to employees

Defined benefit pension obligations

The detall of the current value of the post-employment commitments assumed by the Company at the end of 2009 and 2008, is as

follows:
Thousands of Euros
2009 2008
Retired employees 194,676 187,147
Cutrent employees 47,041 63,358

The defined benefit pension cbligaticns are externalized by means of group life insurance polices, in which invesiments have been
assigned whose flows coincide in lime and amount with the payment schedule of the insured benefits.

The current vaiue of the commitmenis was determined by qualified independent actuaries, and the actuarial assumptions used are as

follows:
Actuarial Assumpticns 2009 2008
Technical interest rate 3.27% 3.02%
Mertality tables PERMIF — 2000 P PERM/F ~ 2060 P
Annual rate of increase of maximum social security pension benefit 2% 2%
Annual wage increase 2.35% 2.35%
Retirement age 85 years 65 years

("} The lechnical inlares! rate ranged from 5.93% lo 3.02% since the externalization of the plan.

33



The contributions made by the Company lo the insurance policy in relation to defined coniribution and defined benefit pension pians
amounted to EUR 2,770 thousand in 2009 (EUR 3,002 thousand in 2008), and is recognised under "Staff Costs" in the income statement.

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no outstanding accrued confributions.

13.1.2 Equity instrument based payments

As described in the measurement bases (Note 4.14) in refation {o equity instrument based payments tc employees, the Company
recognises the services received as an expense, based on their nature, and an increase in equity upon settling the equity instrument

hased payment plan.

tUnder no circumstance does the share option plan invelve the issuing of equity instruments in addition to those already outstanding at 31
Cecembear 2009 and 2008.

In 2009 and 2008 there were lwo share option pians, the salient features of which are as follows:

2004 Plan

Cn 1 July 2004, the Boaid of Direclors of ACS, Actividades de Construccion y Servicios, S.A., in keeping with the resolutions adopted by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 20 May 2004, set up a Share Option Plan with the following features:

Number of shares covered under the Plan: 7,638,000 shares

Beneficiaries: 33 managers: 1 manager with 1,710,000 shares; 6 managers with between 900,000 and 300,000 shares; 16 managers
with 108,000 shares, 10 managers with between 75,000 and 45,000 shares.

Acauisition prica: EUR 13.91 per share.

The options will be exercisable in three equal parts and may be accumulated at the baneficiary’s oplion in the fourth, fith and sixth year
after 1 May 2004, inclusively. However, in the case of the lermination of an employee for causes other than just cause or the
beneficiary's own will, the oplions will be exercisable six months following the event in question, in the cases of death, retirement, early
retirement or permanent disability, and following 30 days in all other cases. Tax withholdings and taxes will be borne by the beneficiaries.

At 31 December 2009, 4,318,000 of the 2004 plan options had been exercised (2,421,500 at 31 December 2008).

2005 Plan

At the Annual General Meeting held on 19 May 2005, the sharehoiders of ACS, Aclividades de Censtruccion y Servicios, S.A. resclved
1o authorise the Board of Directors to modify the previous Share Option Plan by increasing the number of share oplions of the Parent
Cormpany and maintaining the conditions of the previous Plan. Accordingly, the features of this plan subsequent to this increase are as

follows:

Number of shares covered under the Ptan; 7,076,925 shases

Beneficiaries: 39 managers — 1 manager with 1,400,000 shares, 6 managers with between 950,000 and 350,000 shares, 7 managers
with between 178,000 and 180,000 shares and 25 managers with between 83,769 and 19,825 shares.

Acquisition price; EUR 24,10 per share.

The options will be exercisabie in three equat paris and may be accumulaied at the beneficiary’s option in the fourth, fifih and sixth year
after 1 May 2005. The rest of the conditions are the same as for the 2004 Plan,

Al 31 December 2009, 2,362,768 of the 2005 plan options had been exercised (1,783,770 at 31 December 2008).
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The Company has externalised these commitrments with a financial institution. and the finance cost recorded includes the cost borne by
thus entity as a result of the acquisition of the shares which are the subject of these plans.

The stock market price of ACS shares at 31 December 2009 was EUR 34.81 (EUR 32.65 at 31 December 2008),

The amount recognised under "Stalf Cosis" in the 2008 income statement relating to equily instrurment based payments was EUR 1,734
thousand (EUR 3,791 thousand in 2008) This amount does not imply the recognition of income for the beneficiaries until the date on

which the options are exercised, as set forth in the law in force.
13.2 Contingencies

Environment

in view of the Company's business aclivities (Note 1), it does not have any environmental liability, expenses, assels, provisions or
conlingencies that might be material with respect 16 its equity, financial position or results. Therefore, no specific disclosures relating 1o
environmental issues are included in these aotes te financial statements.

CO; Emissions

Given the aclivities carried on by the Company, there are no matters refating to CO; emissions affecting the Company.

14.- Financial liabilities {non-currepnt and current)

14.1 Non-current financial liahilities

The balance of "Non-Current Payabias” at the end of 2009 and 2008 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

Non-Current Financial Instruments
Class Bank Borrowings and Finance L
Derivatives and Other Total
Leases
Category 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Accounts payable 4,143,750 1,888,159 - - 4,143,750 1,888,159
Derivaiives (Notes 10.1 and 10.2) - - 28,054 598,734 28,054 598,734
Total 4,143,750 1,888,159 28,054 598,734 4,171,804 2,486,893

The detail, by maturity, of "Nen-Current Payables" is as follows (in thousands of euros);

2009
2014 and
2010 2011 2012 2013 subsequent Total
years
Bank borrowings 90,544 2,346,918 1,726,832 20,000 50,0001 4,234,294
2008
2013 and
2009 2010 2011 2012 subsequent Total
years
Bank borrowings 1,410,886 1,758,159 40,000 20,000 70,000 3,299,045
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Notable under “Bank Borrowings” in the accompanying balance sheet at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is the syndicated loan amounting
{0 a face value of EUR 1,500,000 thousand, arranged with 39 entities whose agent entity is Caja Madnd. This loan matures on 22 July
2010, ai which time a single repayment is 1o be made in full. The loan bears interest at a rate tied to Euribor and is guaranteed by other
ACS Group companies. Compliance with certain rafics is required based on the EBITDA and net debt of the consclidated group, and
these ranos are bemng mel. There is a hedging denvative instrument on this loan (Mote 10.1). In relation to this loan, on 30 July 2009 the
Company entered info a syndicated loan agreement in which the agent entity was Caja Madrid, totalling EUR 1,594,000 thousand
maluring on 22 July 2012, which automatically enters info operation &t the maturity of the current loan, which is the reason it was
recognised as non-current at the reperiing date. With this iransaction the Company assured the liquidity of its transactions.

The main change in this tem arose from the novation of the "equity swap” on 4.881% of the shares of iberdrola, S A. at ihe beginning of
2009 and, as explainad in Nete 10.2, the recognition of the investment through an “equity swap” at fair value on the asset side of the
accompanying balance sheet. Additionally, the financing tied to this asset amounting to EUR 2,306,918 thousand at 31 December 2009,

and is secured by the 4 881% ownership irnterest in iberdroia, S A

Of the balance of these derivatives at 31 December 2009 amounted to EUR 613 thousand relating to derivatives on the share option
plans and EUR 27,441 thousand refaling 1o the syndicaled loan interest rate swap,

Of the balance of derivatives at 31 December 2008, EUR 537,152 thousand relates to fair value hedges (Note 10) classified as non-
current since they relate mainly {o the investment in Iberdrola, S.A., and EUR 61,582 thousand relating to the syndicated loan interest

rate swap.
14.2 Current financia! liabilities

The balance of "Non-Current Payables" al the end of 2009 and 2008 was as foliows (in thousands of euros);

Current Financial Lizbilities
Class Bank Borrowings and
. Cther Total
Finance Leases
Gategory 2009 2008 2009 2408 2009 2008
Accoudits pavabie 90,544 1.410,886 | 283,769 287,250 | 374,313 1,698,136
Totat 90,544 1,410,886 | 283,769 | 287,250 | 374,313 1,698,136

At 31 December 2009, the Company had credi facilities with limits totalling EUR 655,000 thousand (EUR 1,260,000 theusand in 2008),
of which EUR 92 thousands were drawn down (EUR 429,277 thousand in 2008).

The balance of "Other” includes the interim dividend payable at 31 December 2009 amouniing to EUR 283,198 thousand (EUR 286,780
thousand in 2008) (Note 3).

15.- Tax matters

15.1 Current tax receivables and payables

The detail of the current tax receivables and payables is as follows (in thousands of euros);

Tax receivables

31/12/12008 | 31/12/2008
Corporation tax recelvabie in 2008 99,118 95,118
Gther accounts receivable 2,615 832
Total 101,733 99,950
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Tax pavables

| 3171212909 | 31/12/2008
Coyporaton tax payabie iy 2009 146,166
VAT payabie a6 74
WAT payable 591 654
Accrued social security taxes payable 56 56
Other 10 72
Total 147.009 352

15.2 Reconciliation of the accounting profit to the taxabile profit

The reconciliation of the accounting profit for the year per books to the taxable profit for Corporation tax purposes is as follows:

2009
Thousands of Euros
Increases Decreases Total
Accounting profit before tax from continuing and discontinued operations B05,066
Permanent differences: 4,525
Non-deductible provisions 5,411
Exempl dividends (4,802)
H Neon-deduct:ble expenses 5,677
Qlher differences (1,761}
Timing differences.
Ansing in the year: 1.401
Merger goodwill {30,032}
Externalised pension commitments 2,849
Cther differences 28,584
Artsing in prior years: (17,295)
Externalised pension commitments (19,425)
Use of provisicns and others 3,137 {1,607)
Attributable taxable profit 793,697
2008
Thousands of Euros
Increases Decreases Total
Accounting profit before tax from continuing and discontinued operations 1,024,528
Permanent differences: (609,534)
Gains from exempl financial assets {588,152}
income not laxable due 1o the use of provisions {20.200)
Non-deductible expenses 2832
Other differences 2,790 (6,804}
Timing differences: (21,242)
Asising in the year
Merger goodwil} (30,032}
Externalised pension commiiments 8,674
Other differences 116
Arising in prior years: (36,917}
Externalised pension commitments (21,486)
Use of provisions and others (15,431)
Effect t_af first—time-app_ficalion of New Spanish National Chart of Accounts: P.G.C. wilh a 113.316
balancing entry in equity '
Gans eliminated in the tax consclidation process {377.15%)
Altributable taxable profit 89,998




15.3 Tax recognised in equity

2009 i
Thousands of Euros i
Deferred taxes:
Maasuremeant of hedging financial mstruments 10,243 E 10,243
Measurement of avalable-for-sale financial assets, - {21,710 (21,710}
Total deferred taxes recognised directly in equity g (11,467}
2008
Thousands of Euros
Charge to Credit to
Equgity Equitty Total
Current taxes:
mMeasurement of financial assets heid for trading 51,358 (17,265) 34,085
Other B {on (30)
Total current taxes: 33,995
Deferred taxes:
Measurermnent of hedging financial instruments B,306 - B.306
Pension commitments - (13,500) (13,500}
Provisions for Group companies and asscciates 3,540 - 3,540
Tolal deferrec taxes (1,654}
Tolal taxes recognised direcily in equity 32,341

The detan of the taxes recognised directly in equity due to the application of the New Spanish Mational Charts of Accounts is as follows:

Additionally in 2008 a deferred lax asset amounting to EUR 18,475 thousand was directly cradited to equity and EUR 8,380 thousand
arising from the firsi-time application of the New Spanish National Charl of Accounts was wiitten off. Both items relale to the
measurement of hedging financial instruments (basically interest rate swaps).

15.4 Reconciliation of accounting profit to the income tax expense

The reconciliation of accounting profit to the income tax expense is as follows {in thousands of euros):

2009 2008
Accounting profit before tax from continuing and discantinued operations 805,066 1,021,528
Tax charge at 30% 244,520 306,458
impact of permanent differences 1,358 | {182,860}
Tax credits:
Double taxation (244,788) | (235,659)
Reinvestment of profit and donations (15,865) {2.153)
Provisions and adjusiments (o previous years (14,543) 31,397
Tofal inr.:ome tax expense recognised in profit or loss from continued and discontinued (32,318 82,817
transaction
The breakdown of the current income tax expense is as follows (in thousands of euros):
2008 2008
Continuing operations {54,385} (106,073)
Current tax {41,053} (238,667)
Deferred tax (13,332} 130,594
Discontinued operations 22,067 23,256
Current tax 36,779 23,256
Ceferred tax (14,712) -
Total income tax expense (32,318) {82,817)
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15.5 Deferred tax assets recognised

The detlail of the balance of this account at the end of 2008 and 2008 is as follows {in thousands of euros):

2009 2008

Temperary differences (prepaid taxass)'

Pensian obligations 38,098 42,245

Measurement of hedging financial instrumants 8,233 18.475

Measurement of avatable-for-sale financial assets: 21,730 -

Other 16,237 16172
Unused tax cradils 14,712 2,153
Total deferred tax assets 99,990 78,045

The deferred tax assels indicaled above were recognised because the Company's Direclors considered that, based on their best
estimate of the Company's fulure earnings, inciuding certain tax pianning measures, it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

There were no deferred fax assets of a significant amount.

15.6 Deferred tax liabilities

The detail of the balance of this account at the end of 2009 and 2008 s as foliows (in thousands of euras);

] 3111272009 311212008
Gains efiminated in the lax conselidaton process 250,922 269,088
Marger goodwill 18,020 9,010
Total deferred tax liabilities 268,942 278,098

15.7 Tax incentives

in 2008 gains arose on the Company's sale of the shares of Unién Fenosa, S.A., amounting to EUR 91,286 thousand, including the
gains generated in the sale to another campany included in the tax group Villa Aurea, 5.A., which in tumn transferred the shares fo
anclher non-group company, giving rise to the first internal gain.

The gains on the sales to third parties by the Company and Villa Aurea, S.L., which amounted 10 a total EUR 921,481 lhousand, was
reinvested by different companies in the tax group in 2008 and 2009 amounting lo EUR 684,895 thousand and EUR 236,586 thousand
respectively, and accordingly, the Company availed itself of tax credits in its 2008 and 2009 tax returns amounting to EUR 1,458
thousand and EUR 7,633 thousand, respectively. The invesiment in 2009 was made by the subsidiary Dragados, S.A. in property, plant

and equipment and financial assets.

Additionally, gains arose on the Company's sale of a second tranche of shares of Unién Fenosa, S.A. amounting to EUR 142,046
thousand. These gains are expected to be reinvested within the three years stiputated for the use of the corresponding tax credit for

reinvesiment.

Also, the Company is subject to the commitment to maintain investments in relation to the tax credits of which it availed itself in 2003,
2005 and 2006 for the reinvestment of gains, as indicated in the "Tax Matters" section of the notes o the financial statements of the

corresponding years.
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15.8 Years open for review and tax audits

Under current iegislation, taxes cannot be deemed 1o have been definitively settled until the tax returns filed have been reviewed by the
tax authorities or until the four-year statute-of-limitations period has expired. At the date of these notes to the financial siatements an
aucit by the Central Large Taxpayer Unit was in process for Corporation tax for the vears 2003 to 20065, filed by the company and the
merged entily Grupo Dragados, S.A. as well as other taxes for the years 2004 and 2005. A conclusion has yet to be documented.

Additionally, in relation to the appeals filed against tax assessments referred to in the notes 1o the financial statements for previous vears,
A ruling has yet to be handed down in the case of the tax assessments issued against the Dragados tax group for the years 2000 to
2002. However, any effect on the Group's financial staiemenis is covered by provisions in accordance with the normal criteria relating to

the coverage of lawsuits.

The Company's Directors consider that the lax returns have been filed correctly and, therefors, even in the event of discrepancies in the
inMerpretation of current fax fegislation in refation to the tax treatment afforded to certain transactions; such liabilities as might arise would
not have a materiai effect on the accompanying financiaf statements.

16.- Foreign currency -

The mosti significani foreign curreney {ransactions carried out in 2008 amounted to $US 563 thousand, and related mainly to prefessional
fees. In 2009 i related to professional fees amounting to US $ 80 thousand.

The exchange gains recognrised in income for 2009 amounted to EUR 32 thousand (EUR 37 theusand in 2008).

Income and expenses

17.1 Revenue

As explained in Note 2.4, in accordance with the request for a ruling published in Official Gazette No. 79 of the Spanish Accounting and
Audit institute {ICAC), the detail of revenue is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2009 2008
Dividands from Group companies and associates 717,978 754,378
Dividend from pon-current financial assets 83,833 71
Financial income from Groug companies and associates 139,297 139,239
Sales 5,188 8,581
Provision of services 1,261 1,180
Total 947,555 901,44%

The revenue recognised in 2009 and 2008 is from the Joint Venture Dramar and relates {o business activities carried out for the Spanish

state ports.

The balance of heading “Provision of Services” includes costs borme by the Company which are subsequenily re-billed to Group

companies as rent and pension plans.

17.2 Employee benefit costs

The balance of " Employee Benefit Costs in the income statement in 2009 and 2008 is as follows (in thousands of euros);

2009 2008
Employee benefit costs
Employer social securily {axes 860 822
Contributions to pension plans (Note 13.1) 2770 3,002
Other employee benefit costs 627 BO2
Total 4,257 4,626
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17.3 Financg income ang finance costs

The detail of the finance income and finance costs calculated by applying the effective interest method is as follows (in thousands of

euros);
2009 2008
Finance income Finance costs Finance income | Finance costs
Application of the effective interest method 25,028 227,748 20,413 317.830

At year-end the Company measured the value of the derivative agreements, and specifically the “equily swap”, on the shares of {berdrela,
S.A. affecting 5.2% of the company's share capital at fair value. The loss amounting o EUR 648,185 thousand, was recognised in
“Changes in the Fair Value of Financial Instruments” in the income statement in 2008. In 2009, as a result of the novation of the equity
swap of lberdrola. 8.A. (Note 10.2) this measurement was not required, since the ownership interest was recognised as a non-curent
financiai assel. The effect retated exclusively to the market price of the underlying derivative included in the share option plans (Note

18.2).

The gains on the sale of financial instrumanis in 2008 relates to the sale of the company’s ownership interest in Invin, S.L., the sale of
the holding in Scutvias Autoesirada da Beira Interior, S.A. and the sale of the ownership inferest in Abertis infraestructuras, S.A. to ACS

Group companies.

17.4 Cther profit or loss

The amount recognised in 2009 under the heading “Gther Profit and Less” in the income statement refates to commitments assumed by
the Company in refation to certain Group companies.

The EUR 18,223 thousand recognised under “"Other Profit or Loss” in the 2008 income statement relates lo severance payable (o
employees in other Group companies previously associated to the Company or companies it has absorbed. Additionally, the Company
reversed provisions for contingencies and expenses amaounting to EUR 54,523 thousand since it was estimated that in 2008, the related

risks were no longer prebable (Note 13.1).

18.-Related party transactions and balances

18.1 Related party transactions

The detait of related parly transactions performed in 2009 is as follows (in thousands of euros).

2009
Income (-}, Expense (+)
Group Companies Associates

Assel purchases 1,837 -
Reception of services 8,296 -
Operating lease agreements 2,088 -
Interest received 39,296 -
interes! paid (139,297) -
Accrued interest collected 18,337 -
Accrued interest receivable (1,286} -
Dividends (655,616} (62,362)
Cost apporlionment agreement (2,085) (3}
Other profit or loss 3,100 -

The detail of related parly transactions performed in 2008 is as follows (in thousands of euros):
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2008
Income (-}, Expense (+}
Group Companies Associates

Asset purchases 211 .
Operating iease agreements 2,037 -
Interesi receved 94 071

Interest paid (139,240} -
Accrued interest collected 36,813 B
Agcrued interest receivable {10,689}

Dividends (678,797} (75.581)
Remuneration and severance 22,400 -
Cost apportienment agreement (5.262) {5
Other profit or loss 12,900 .

Additionatly, the main transactions carried out by the Company with Group companies in 2008 and not included in the above table were
as follows:

- Sale to Aurea Fortana, S.L. of 31,920,500 shares of Abertis infraestructiras, S.A. at a price of EUR 20 per share, in relaticn to which
the gains tefore tax amounted to EUR 279,011 thousand.

- Sale to Villa Aurea, S.L. of 9,000,800 shares of Unidn Fenosa, S.A., at a price of EUR 13.67 per share, in relation o which the gains
before tax amounted to EUR 19,739 thousand.

- Sale tc Villa Aurea, S.L of 30,000,000 shares of Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A. at a price of EUR 14 per share, in refation to which the
gains before tax amounted to EUR 98,142 thousand.

- Non-monetary conlribution to Aurea Fonlana, S.L. of 15,000,000 shares of Abertis Infraestruciuras, S.A. at EUR 10.72 per share.

- Mon-monetary contribution to Aurea Fontana, S.L. of 10,000,000 shares of Unién Fenosa, S.A. at EUR 12.94 per share.

- Nor-monelary contribution to Aurea Fantana, S.L. of 1,000,000 shares of Abertis [nfraestruciuras, S.A7at EUR 11.26 per share.

In connection with associates, the Company sold 57.7% of Invin, S.L. to Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A. and the resulting gains amounted
to BEUR 315,052 thousand.

18.2 Related party balances

The detait of the balances with relaled parties in the balance sheet at 31 December 2009 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2009
Group ;
Companies Associates
Non-current financial assets 3,468,731 1,271,722
Equity instruments (Note 5.3) 1,444,736 1,271,722
Loans to cormnpanies (Note $.3) 2,023,995 -
Sundry accounts receivable 284,778 647
Current financial asseis 849,491 -
Loans {o companies 598,988 -
Other financizl assets (Note $.2) 250,483 -
Non-current liabilities 1,497,585 -
Current Payables 1,086,266 -
Trade Payables 23,354 “

Additicnally, the Company recognised an interim dividend payable at the end of 2068 amounting to EUR 283,198 thousand (Noles 3 and

14).
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The detail of the balances with refated pariies in the balance sheet at 31 December 2008 is as follows {in thousands of euros);

2008
Group ]
Companios Associates
Non-current financial assets 3,640,194 1,299,711
Equity instruments {Note 9.3) 1,572,215 1,298,711
Loans to companies (Note 9.3} 2,067,979 -
Sundry accounts receivable 225,184 1,156
Current financial assets 1,738,183 -
Loans fo companies 1,404,988 -
Gther financral asseis {Note 9,2) 333,175 .
Non-current liabilities 307,171 -
Current Payahles 1,578,286 -
Trade Payables 97,45% -

Additionaily, the Company recognised an interim dividend payable at the end of 2008 amounting 1o EUR 286,780 thousand {Notes 3 and
14).

The detail, at 31 December 2009 and 2008, of "Current Loans to Group Companies” is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2009 2008
Residencial Monte Carmelo, $.A, 400,343 B21,108
Carialide, §.A, 197,992 457 625
ACS Telefonia Movil, S.L. 75 111,005
Crher 588 15,250
Total 598,998 1,404,988

The loans to Residencial Monte Carmelo, S.A. and to Carlatide, SA, include the financing aranged by the Company in order to enable it
to cover ils invesiment coverage ratios at 31 December 2009 and 2008 {Note 9.2). These loans are tied to Euribor.

in retation to the loans that financed the investments of Residencial Monte Carmelo, S.A. (6.87% of Iberdrola, S.A.) and Cariatide
(25.08% of Hochtief, A.G.}, the financing agreements entered into stipulate that coverage ratios must be met or otherwise, the pledges
on the shares of Iberdrola, S.A. and Hochtief, A.G. could be execuled. In the event that the coverage ratios were not maintained, ACS,
Aclividades de Construccion y Servicios, 8.A. would be obligated to contribute additional funds. Al 31 December 2008 the Company had
contributed funds amounting to EUR 1,278,733 thousand. At 31 December 2009 the Company had contributed funds amounting o EUR

579,661 thousand.

The detail of "Non-Current Loans to Group Companies” at 371 December 2008 and 2008 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2008 2008
PR Pisa, $.A.U, 1,409,412 -
Reperfeli, S.L. 80,343 167,744
Villa Aurea, S.L, - 139,239
Novovilla, §.L. 7.285 -
Villanova, S.A. 545 188
Total 1,497,585 307471

These loans are tied to Euribor and mature in 2011 and 2012.
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The detail of "Current Loans tc Group Companies™ at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2048 2008
Cragados S A 1.020,714 1,215,883
ncium Concesiones de Infrassiructuras, S.A. -+ 262,248
Others of a iesser amount 85,562 100,155
Total 1,086,266 1,675,286

The balance payable to Dragados, S.A. relates to a credit agreement which matures annuaily and i automatically renewable, except in
the case of exprass prior notice of terminalion by the parties thersto. This lvan bears an interest rate tie to Euribor.

The balance payabie to Iridium Concesiones de Infragstructuras, S.A. refates to a credit agreement which malures annuaily and is
automatically renewable, This loan bears an interest rate tied Lo Euribor.

The other balances payabie to Group companies do not relate to finzncial liabilities.

The transactions between Group companies and associates are prefermed on an arm's-length basis as in the case of transactions with

independent pariies.

18.3 Remuneration of the Board of Birectors and senior executives

The breakdown of lhe remuneration received in 2009 and 2008 by the members of the Board of Directors and senior executives cof the

Company is as fatlows (ir thousands of euros):

2009
Salaries .
) Attendance Pension insurance Share
{fixed and . . Other
. Fees Plans premmiums Options
variable)
Beard of Diractors 6,686 2,410 2,025 16 587 93
Senior axecutives 2,684 - 745 4 80 -
2008
Safaries .
. Attendance Pension Insurance Share
{fixed and ) . Other
_ Feas Plans premiums Qptions
variable)
Beard of Diractors 5,440 2,081 2,204 12 1,283 -
Senlor executives 2,565 - 757 1 175 -

At the end of 2009 and 2008, the Company had not granted any loans or advances to its Board Members or senior execulives, nor had

any termination benefits been paid thereto.

The amounts included under "Share Qptions" do not imply the recogniticn of income for the beneficiaries until the date on which the

options are exercised, as set forth in the law in force.

15.4 Detail of investments in_companies with similar activities and of the performance, as independent professionals or as

employees, of similar activitios by the Directors

Pursuant to Article 127 ter.4 of lhe Spanish Companies Law, intreduced by Law 26/2003, of 17 July, which amends Securities Market
Law 24/1988 of 28 July, and the Consolidated Spanish Companies Law, in order to reinforce the transparency of listed corporations,
following is a delail of the companies engaging in an activity thal is identicat, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the
cempany abject of ACS, Aclividades de Censtruccion y Servicios, S.A. in which the members of the Board of Cirectors own equity
interests, of the positiens or functions, if any, that they discharge thereat :
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o Fuhetidhs”

José Lus det Valle Pérez

Del Valle inversiones, S.A,

Cwner b “Inyestee o Activity
Pablo Vallbona Vadell Abertis infraestructuras. § A Concessions 0.001% : Vice Chawrman
Antcnio Garcia Ferrer Aberts Infragstructuras, 5.A ¢ Concessions 0.000% Board member
Javier Echenique Laadiribar Abertis Infraastructuras, S.A. . Concessions 0.002% Board member
| !
b e e ‘ ainn n s - . -
. . - ) i . ‘ + Charman (through
Padro Lopez Jiménez Terratest Técnicas Especiales, 5.A. i Special Foundations 45% : ) ¢ 9
: : Fapindus, S.L}
Santes Martinez-Conde Fomento de Construcciones y Contratas, . ;
.- . i Construclion and Services G.004% \ None
Gutigrrez-Barquin S.A.
Santos Martinez-Conde ! . X Construction of Industrial ;
. . { Técnicas Reunidas, S.A. ; o . 0.002% None
Gutieérrez-Barguin i Facilities
Santos Martinez-Conde |
- ) { Repsol YPF, S.A. ! Energy L 0.001% None
Gutiérrez-Barquin K !
: i : i
Santos Marfinez-Conde i . | informatian technolcgies ! i
. i ! indra Sistemas, S.A, H : 0.001% i None
Gutiérraz-Barquin ! and defence systems
Santos Martinez-Conde i
) A :  Endesa, S.A. r Enesgy 0.000% i Nene
Guuérrez-Barquin - ¢ . .
Sanios Martinez-Conde
l‘, ' i Grupo Ferrovial, $.A. ;  Construction and Services 0.001% ¢ None
Gutiérrez-Barquin . H :
Santos Martunez-Conde : . i 3 i
. N ! Telefénlca, S.A. i Telephony 0.001% i None
Gutérrez-Barguin i
Santos Martinez-Conde : : i
) i ! Abertis Infraestruciuras, S.A. { Concessions 0.001% . MNone
Gutigrrer-Barquin : P i
+
Santos Marinez-Conde ;
L, . Iberdrola Renovables, 5.A. Energy 0.000% Nene
Gulierrez-Barquin _
Martinez-Conde : ‘
Sant.os 3 mez. en Gas Natural SDG, $.A. Energy 0.001% None
Gutérrez-Barguin !
Santes Martinez-Conde :
an“c an i Enagas, $.A, Energy ‘ 0.002% None
Gutiérrez-Barquin :
Santos Martinez-Conde
an” ! B tberdrola, S.A. Energy i 0.001% None
Guliérrez-Barquin i
i
. , . . Information technologies : i
Javier Monzén de Caceres Indra Sistemas, S.A. ; 0.094% Chairman
and defence systems I
i T Individual representing the
Javier Monzén de Cacerss ; Banco Inversis Nel, S.A. Finance G.000% Board Member Indra
E Sistemas, S.A.
Javier Monzén de Céaceres YPF, $.A. Energy ~ 0.000% Board member
Javier Monzon de Céceres Lagardere SCA Commueication ; 0.0081% Beard member
José Luis del Valle Pérez i Inmobiliaria Paredes, 5.A. Real Estate ; 13.57% Sole Director
Real Estate 33.33% | Director acting severally
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S . i e Ownershi R
Owner 7 - w7 |nvestee o T UActvity s C p. S Funetiens UL
e o interest UL
B L i
: |
José Luis def Vaile Perez i Inversiones Montecarmelo, S.A. Real Estate 23,48% ! None
¢ e — m—— | J— ; — e e
JE . . . :  Privaie secusity ang integral .
Jose Luis del Valle Parez : Sagital, $.A. H X i 9 5 10% 1 Mone
: ¢t building maintepance ;
Flerenting Pérez Rodriguez Abestis Infraestructuras, S.A. ! Concassicns : 0% ' Vice Chawman

Also pursuant to the aforementioned law, following is a detail of the aclivities performed by the directors, as independent professionals or
as employees, that are identical, similar or complementary te the activity that constitutes the company object of ACS, Aclividades de

Construccion y Servicios, S.A in 2009.:

e e gt . RTINS : Company thrgugh which the - | -Position or Function at the
wae.Name ¢ . Activity Performed . A, P )‘ ough which te | } S I i b
Pablo Valbona Vadell ‘ Concessions Employee Abenris Infraestructuras, S.A. : Vice Chairman
; |
Pablo Vatbona Vadell Hetding . Employee : Corporacion Financiera Alba, S.A, Vice Chairman
[ i :
i Antonic Garcia Farrer i Construction Employee Dragados, 5 A. Board member
| i :
E . | . ) | ACS, Servicios, Comunicaciones
Antoro Garcia Farrar - Industrial Services : Employee i j + Board member
i £ Py Energia, SL.
. - : i . , ACS, Servicios y Concesicnes,
Antonio Garcia Farrer . Urban services and concessions Employee sL . Board member
Anlenic Garcia Ferrer i Concessions Employee Abertis Infraestructuras, S A, Board member
: Cobra Gestion de
José Maria Aguirre Gonzalez Engineering and Assembly Work Employee Chairman
Infraestructuras, S.L.
ACS, Servicios, Comunicaciones
José Maria Aguirre Gonzalez industrial Services Employes K : Vice Chairman
y Energia, S.L.
Manuel Delgado Solis Construction Employee : Dragadcs, 5. A | Board member
. . . ACS, Servicios, Comunicaciones -
Javier Echenique Landiribar Industrial Services i Employee , i Board member
y Energia, SL.
Javier Echenique Landinbar ' Finance Employee Banco Guipuzcoano Chairman of the Board of Directors
Javier Echenique Landiribar i Energy Emgloyee Repscl YPF, S.A. Board member
;
‘
Javier Echenique Landiribar i Paper Employee | Ence, 5.A, i Board member
Javier Echenigue tandiribar Concessions Employee Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A. Board member
Juan March de la Lastra Halding Employee Carporacion Financiera Aloa, 5.A. | Board member
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Juan Mareh de la Lastra ! information Technologies Employee . Indra Sistemas, S.A. Board mamber

José Mara Loizaga Vigun " Lifts Employee : Zardoya Obs, §.A : Vice Chairman

, ) . . . ‘ Independant : ) i .
José Maria t,oizaga Vigur © Venture Capita! : . ¢ Cartera Industrial REA, S.A. i Chairman
. ; Professional i
José Maria Loizaga Vigun | Sisternas de Almacenale Employee i Mecalux ! Board member

. Dragadas Servicies Porfuarios y
. Logisticas, S.L.

Agustin Batuecas Tofrego ¢ Poftand logistics services i Empioyee * Vice Chairman

o : : Indrsidual representing Vias y

Agustin Batuecas Torrego Rail transport of goods ! Employee : Continental Rail, S.A. i Construcciones $.A.. Chairman
: : ! : and CEO
T : i i individual representing Indium
. . . Intercamtador de Transportes
Agustin Batuecas Torrego - Trapsport inlerchange Emgplovee Princice Pio S A Concesiones de infraestructuras,
. TIngI i A
i ? S.A. Chairman and CEQ
! . Individual representing Iridium
, 5 Intercambiador de Transportes . _
Agustin Batuecas Torrege i Transpert interchange Employee . Concesiones de Infraesiructuras,
H Plaza de Castilla, S.A.
| 8.A, Chawrman and CEQ
Agustin Batuecas Torrego Rail transport of goods Employse ! Construrail, S5.A. Board member
: :
Pedro José Lopez Jiménez * Coenstruction ; Employee Dragados, S.A, Vice Chairman
L L, : . . ! ACS, Servicios y Concesiones,
Pedro José Lopez Jimenez ! Urban services and concessicns Employee H sL Board member
H i =
. L ) . . Chairman
Pedro José Lopez Jimenez ;. Special Foundations i Employee ¢ Grupo Terratest .
; {through Fapindus, S.L.)
antos Martinez-Conde : i
s N s ? : i Finance ; Employge Banca March, S A, Beard member
Guligérrez- Barquin ; |
Santos Martinez-Conde : :
) ant X i Steel | Employee 1 Acerinox, S.A. Beard member
Gutiérrez- Barquin i . :
Sanios Martinez-Conde ; ) I . ;
B , - Holding Employes Corperacion Financiera Alba, S.A, ; CEO
Guuiérrez- Barquin i
A i X i ACS, Servicios y Concesiones,
Javier Monzén de Caceres Urban services and concessions Employee s Board member
Javier Monzon de Caceres Infermation Technclogies Empioyes indra Sistemas, S.A. Chairman
Javier M 5 de O Fi Emol B in is Net. S.A Individual representing the Board
avie & Caceres inance mployee anceo inversis Net, 5.A.
vier Monzon ploy Member Indra Sistermas, S.A.
Javier Monzdn de Caceres Energy . Emgployee YPF, 5.A. Board member
Javier Monzon de Caceres i Compmunication Employee Lagardere, SCA Board mesnber
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infraestructuras, S.A,
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b ]
Julic Sacristan Fidalgo * Tollroad Cancessions Employee . Autopistas Aumar, 5.A.C.E. Boarg member
Julic Sacristidn Hidalge Concessions Employee Abertis infraestructuras, S.A. \ Board member
: : :
Miguel Roca Junyent ¢ Infrastructure Concessions Employee ' Aberlis Infragstructuras, S.A. ; Nen-Director secretary
% :
Miguel Roca Jupyent i Finance H Employee , Banco Sabadell, S.A. ¢ Nen-Diracter secretary
1 : ]
; ; ; independent non-executive board
Migugl Roca Junyent . Energy i Employee . Endesa :
; : { member
* i 1 H
. i . BME-Bolsas y Mercados
Alvaro Cuervo Garcia i Stock Exchange . Employee : . Board member
. : : Espafocles, S.A.
. . ) . ; ACS, Servicios y Concesiones, .
José Luis del Valle Pérez { Urban services and concessions | Employee Si Directer-Secretary
: ; P
Ly , . . i ACS, Servicios, Comunicaciones [
José Luis del Valle Perexz Y ndustrial Services | Employee ' i : Director-Secretary
H i ¥ Energia, S.L.
- : :
José Luis del Valle Pérez . Construction a Empioyee Dragados, S.A. Director-Secretary
i . . ) Cobra Gaslidn de
José Luis del Valle Pérez i Engineering and Assembly Work Employee Director-Secretary
: Infraestructuras, S.L
José Luis del Vaile Pér i Engineering and Assembly Work Employee Socledad Esparioia de Montajes Director-Secreta
osé Luis del Vaile Perez : i i : , irector-Secref
! 9 9 / ! Rioy Industrizles, 5.A, i
e e t
Dragados Servicios Portuarios
José Luis del Valle Pérez i Ports and Logistics Employee g . 4 Board member
; Legisticos, S.L.
i . i Iridium Concesiones de
José Luis del Valle Pérez . Infrastructiure Concessions Employee Board member

José Luis del Valle Pérez s Integral Maintenance Empiaoyee N Clece, 3.4, Board member
José Luis del Valle Pérez ! Concessions : Employee Saba Aparcamientos, S.A. Board member
i i
José Luis del Valle Pérez ; Usban Services Employee | Urbaser, S.A. i Board member
José Luis del Valle Perez ! investments : Employee i Dei Valle lnversiones, S A. i Director acting severally
José Luis del Vaile Pérez w Motorway Concessions Employee Iverpistas, S.A.CE. Director-Secretary
José Luis del Valle Pérez ! Real Estate Employee Inmebiliaria Paredes, S.A. Scle Cirector
Francisco Verdu Pons E Holding Employee Carporacién Financiera Alba, S.A. | Board member
Francisco Verdd Pons Finance Employee Banca March, S.A, i CEO
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i Tourism

Apartamentos, S.L.
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|

i : .

| Florentino Pérez Rodriguez . Concessions Cmployee Aberus infragswucturas, S.A. - Vice Ghairman

; : .

i — i iberostar Heteles y

E Sabina Fluxa Thisaemann Emplovee i Beard member

E H

In 2068 and 2008 the Company parformed commercial fransactions with companies in which certain of its Board Members perform
management functions. All these commercial transactions were carried out on an arm’s-lenglh basis in the ordinary course of business,

and related to ordinary Company fransaclions.

19.- Discontinued operations

in 2009 and 2008 the Company sold ownership interests held in the Energy line of business. In accordance with the rules set forth in the

Spanish National Chart of Accounts, the sale of this activity has been classified as a discontinued cperation.

The detail of the equily items relating to this Energy activity at 31 December 2008 is as follows:

Thousands of

Euros
Investment in Unién Fenosa, S.A. 382,213
Interim dividend of Unidn Fenosa, S.A. B,273
Total 390,486

Al 31 December 2009 there were no balances relating to discontinued operations.

The income, expenses and profit before tax recognised in the income statement are as follows:

Detail of income and expenses from discontinued operations

(Thousands of Euros)

2009 2008
Net profit from operations - -
Finance income - 25,879
Gains on the disposat of financiaf instruments 141,546 91,296
Financial loss 141,546 117,175
Profit before tax from discontinued cperations 141,546 117,175
Corporate income tax (22,087) (23,255)
Profit for the year relating to discontinued operations 118,479 93,920

The net cash flows attributable to operating, investment and finance activities refating o discontinued operations are as follows:

Detail of the cash flows relating tg discontinued operations

(Thousands of Eures)

2009 2008
Cash flows from operating aclivities 8,273 (5,648)
Cash flows fromn investing activities 533,330 612,235
Cash flows from financing activities - -
Total £41,603 606,587
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20.- Other disciosures

20.1 Emplovee receivables

The average number of employees in 2009 and 2008, broken down by category, is as follows

Category 2008
Men Women TOTAL
University graduates 24 & kit
Junior college graduates 4 1 5
Nen-graduale ling personnel - 13 13
Othar staff 7 B 7
Total 35 20 55
Category 2008
Men Women TOTAL
University graduates 24 § 29
Junior ¢ollege graduates 4 1 5
Non-graduate line personnel - 14 14
Other staff 7 - 7
Total 35 20 55

Also, the distribution by sex at the end of 2009 and 2008, broken down by category, is as follows;

2008
Category
Men Women TOTAL
University graduates 24 g 30
Junior college graduates 3 1 4
Non-graduate line personnei - 13 13
Other staff 7 - 7
Total 34 20 54
2008
Category
Men Women TOTAL
University graduates 24 5 29
Junior cotlege graduates 4 1 5
Non-graduate line personnel - 14 4
Other siaff 7 _ 7
Total 35 20 55

20.2 Fees paid to auditors

In 2009 the fees for financial audit services provided by the Company’s auditors, Deloitie, S.L., or by a firm in the same group or relaled
to the auditors amounted to EUR 159 thousand (EUR 158 thousand in 2008). Additionally, the fees for tax counselling provided by firms
related {o the auditors amounted to EUR 13 thousand. In 2009 no fees were billed in this connection. No fees for any other services were
bitled by Deloitte, S.L. in 2009 or 2008,

20.3 Guarantee commitments to third parties and other contingent liabilities
The Company basically acls as guarantor to facililate the granting of guarantees to Group companies and associales for their provision
to Government bodies and private customers in order to secure the correct performance of their projects. The guarantees granied at 31

December 2009 amounted to EUR 111,346 thousand (EUR 367,080 thousand at 31 December 2008).

Company management considers that any unforeseen liabilities which might arise from the guarantees provided would not be material.
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21.- Events after the reporting period

At the dale of the preparation of these financial statements there were no events worthy of mention with an effect on the information

conjamned in the financeal statements.

22.- Explanation added for translation to English

These financial siatements are presented on the basis of accounting principies generally accepted in Spain. Certain accounting practices
applied by the Company that conform with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain may not conform with generally accepted

accounting principles in other countries.
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1. - Company's business performance in 2009

ACS Actividades de Construccion y Servicios. S.A., the parent of the ACS Group, performed very positively in 2008. Both the
Group's sales and the profitability of all its operations increased, and at the same time, there was a significant decrease in its

borrowings as a result of the cash flows generaied from operations.

Following is a summary of the consolidated financial aggregates, preparad in accordance with IFRS-UE:

ACS Group
Key operating and financial indicators
Miilion of Euros 2008 2008 Var, 09/08
Revenue 15,276 15,606 +2.2%
international 21,9 % 26.3%
EBITDA 1,382 1,458 +5.5%
Margin 2.1% 8.3%
EBIT 1.043 1,080 +3.6%
Margin 6.8% 59%
Net profit from continuing operations” 700 342 +20.4%
Net profit attributable to the parent 1,805 1,952 +8.1%
EPS 5.43 € 5.28 € +15.6%
Cash flow from operations 972 1.652 +70.0%
Net investments 54 {1,307} n.a.
Investments 2,813 4,598 n.a.
Disposals 2,750 5,905 n.a.
Net debt 9,356 9,271 -0.9%
Net recourse debt 2,934 302 -89.7%
Non-receurse financing 6,422 8,969 +39.7%

Profit after taxes and minority interests excluding extracrdinary profit and fass and discontinued operations.

NQTE: The figures included in this report are presented in accordance with the Group's management criteria any may
differ with respect to those presented in the financial statements due to certain reclassifications which have no effect on

net profit.

The main item of income of ACS Actividades de Construccién y Servicios S.A. relates io the dividends received from companies

forming part of the consolidated group, a detail of which is as follows:

Dividends 2008 % 2009 % Var 08/09
Construction 246.3 33% 2343 29% -5%
Environment & Logistics 165.0 22% 40.6 5% -75%
Industrial Services 249.0 34% 2812 36% 17%
Other 94.1 12% 235.7 29% 15.1%
Totai 754.4 801.8 6%

2.- Treasury shares

At 31 December 2009, the Company had no treasury shares. The detail of the transactions performed in the year is as follows:

Treasury shares Number of shares
Balance at 31 December 2008
Purchases 7,981,082
Sales 4,001,702
Amortisation of shares 3.976.380
Balance at 31 December 2009 -

In June 2009 and as resoived by the ACS Group's General Shareheolders' Meeting hald on 25 May 2009, 3,979,380 {reasury
shares were redeemed (1.249% of the share capital). Therefore, the share capital of ACS amounts to EUR 157,332,297

represented by 314,664,594 shares,
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3. - Risk management policy

3.1 Main risks and uncertainties faced by ACS. Actividades de Construccidn v Servicios, S.A.

As Parent of the ACS Group, ACS Actividades de Construccion v Servicios S.A. is indirectly exposed 1o the risks to which its
subsidiaries are exposed. The ACS Group operates in sectors, countries and social, economic and legal environments which
involve the assumgption of different levels of risk caused by these determining factors.

The ACS Groug menitors and controls the aforementioned risks in order o prevent an impairment of profitabiiily for its
shareholders, a danger to its employees or corporate reputation, a problem for ifs customners or a negative impact on the
company as a whole. For this purpose, the ACS Group has instruments enabling it to identify such risks sufficiently in advance or
te avoid them, and to minimise the risk, prioritising their significance as necessary.

The ACS Group's 2009 Corporate Governance report detfails these risk control instruments, as well as the risks and uncertainties
to which it was exposed over the year.

3.2 Financial risk management

As in the previous case, as Parent of the ACS Group, ACS Aclividades de Construccion y. Servicios S.A. is exposed to various
financial risks, including the risks of changes in interest rates and exchange rates, as weil as liquidity and credit risk.

Risks arising from changes in interest rates affecting cash flows are mitigated by hedging the rates through the use of firanchal
instruments which cushion their fluctuation. In this connection, the Company uses interest rate swaps to reduce exposure to non-

current loans.

The risk of changes in exchange rates is managed by borrowing in the same operating currency as that of the assets being
financed by the Group abroad. In order to hedge net positions in currencies other than the Eure, the Group arranges different
financial instruments to reduce the exposure 1o the risk of changes in exchange rates.

To manage the liquidity risk resuiting from the temporary mismatches between funds reguired and funds generated, a balance is
maintained between the term and the ftexibility of the berrowings through the use of staggered financing rmatching the Group's
fund requirements. In this connection, noteworthy is the renewal of the syndicated loan of ACS, Actividades de Construccién y
Servicios, S.A. amounting to EUR 1,500 millior oa 30 July 2009, extending its maturity date te July 2012 and increasing the

amount to EUR 1,594 million.

Finally, credit risk caused by the non-payment of commercial loans is dealt with through the preventive assessment of the
solvency rating of potentiat Group customers, both at the commencement of the refationship with these customers and during the
term of the contract, through the evaluation of the credit quality of the outstanding amounts and the revision of the estimated
recoverable amounts in the case of balances considered to be doubtfully coliectibie.

A full detail of the mechanisms used to manage financial risks and of the financial instruments used to hedge these risks is
inciuded in the notes to the both the Company's individual financial statements and the Group's consolidated financial statements

for 2009.

4.- Human resources

In 2009 ACS Actividades de Construccidn y Servicios S.A. employed an average 55 individuals. The Company's human
resources policy is in the same line as that of the ACS Group, and is aimed at maintaining and hiring commilied teams of
individuats, with a high level of knowledge and specialization, capable of offering the best service to the customer and generating

business opportunities with rigour and efficiency.

The ACS Group had a total 142,176 empicyees at 31 December 2009,
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5.« Technolegical innovation and environmental protection

ACS Acdtividades de Constfruccion y Servicios 3.A. considers that sustainable growth, its vocation to care for and respect the
environment and the meeting of the expectations that sociely places on it must all have a decisive influence on its strategy and on

each of its actions.

This cemmitment is identified in each of the aciivities in which the Group is present, in each of the investments that it promotes
and In the decisicns that i takes in order lo satisfy it custerners and shareholders, o boost profitable growth, quality and
technoiogical deveicpment, while aiso aitending to growing demands for respect of the environment by impiementing measures
to prevent or minimize the environmentat impact of the Group's infrastructure development and service activities.

5.1 Research and development activities

Cn an individual basis, the Company does nect engage in research and development, However, the ACS Group is commiited to a
policy of ongaing improvemant of its processes and of applied technoiogy in aff activities, For this purpose, the ACS Group has its
own research program aimed at developing new lechnofogical know-how applicable {6 the design of processes, systems, new

materials, efc. in @ach activity that it manages.

5.2.Envirgnmental protection

As in the previous case, on an individual basis, the Company does not carry on any environmental activity. However, the ACS
Group’s main activity, namely the development and maintenance of infrastructures, involves environmental impacts including the
use of materials derwving from natural resources, the use of energy (both during construction as well as during the life of the
various infrastructuras), the generation of waste, as well as both visual effects and effects on the landscape.

In line with its vocation to brotect the environment, which has prevailed since its creation, the ACS Group works in two main
action areas: continue prometing the principal criteria of its environmental policy, the main objective of which is to minimize the
environmental impact of its activily, and for an additional year, an Environmenial Management System, which controls the specific

actions of each Group company {c protect the environment.

6.- Significant events subsequent to year-end

At the date of the preparation of these financial statements there were no evenis worthy of mention with an effect on the
information contained in the financial statements.

7.- Qutlock for 2010

The outlook of ACS, Aclividades de Construccién y Servicios is influenced by the performance of the Group of which it is the
Parent. Certain evenis in the recently ended year 2009 cause the ACS Group to approach 2010 cautiously. However, they also
enable it to have a somewhat optimistic look. Although the economic backdrop in Spain is difficuit, recent investments and
internationalization wilf enable the ACS Group to continue supplying sustainable growth and value to its shareholders.

The performance of Construction in 2010 will depend to a large extent on the performance of the domestic market and of the
international markets in which the Group is present;

- On the one hand, construction in Spain continues to be affected by the real estate crisis and the reduction in public
resources for new infrastructures. Specifically, the civil engineering works segment, where the Group's exposure is
highest, will depend on the Government's continued commitment {o developing infrastructures in Spain. In the Stale
Budget EUR 21,000 millien have been allocated for this purpose. However, the degree of completion wili depend on the
performance of public accounts as well as economic recovery.

- Internationally, the outleok for 2010 centres on capitalising on infrastructure invesiments in the USA and Poland, where
the Group has invested heavily in previous years, in addition to markets in which the Group has traditionally been present
such as Portugal and Chile, and where it competes in the development of concession and ¢ivil engingering projects. This
increase in the internationalisation of construction activity will enable the projected drop in activity in the Spanish market to

be offset.
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The Group will centinue to work towards maintaining its capacity to maintain high cperating efiiciency through cost containment
and the management of working capital, variables which are crucial in a business which is competitive as construction.

In ling with the performance of large civil engineering works, the ACS Group has significant opportunities based on the large and
mainly international projecis awarded in recent years, which will require investments of more than EUR 3,000 milfion.

in 2010, the ACS Group is prequalified in several cails for tender for projects for which the related investment will amount to over
EUR 1,000 million, and is ready to continue bidding on projects which are to be tendered by government bodies in Europe and

the US In the near future

In 2010 the ACS Group will maintain #s strategy of rotating ofder concessions, selling those for which the development period has
been compleied to heighten the value of its initial investment. In this connection, ACS will continue to foster operating and
strategic synergies shared with Abertis, which will enable the Group to uphold its position as worldwide leader in the development

of concessions, as in the past 15 years

In Environmental Services, the ACS Group has identified several lines of action which will enable It tc maintain profitability in this

area, characterized by its wisibility and recurrent iong-teren income

- Firstly, in the management of urban solid waste, where Urbaser is a reference, it will continue #s international
expansion into countries where it has already been successful in tender processes, and ,mainly waste treatment plants.

- In the integral Maintenance area, Clece will continue offering services enabling its clients to face cost reductions
efficiently by cutsourcing their maintenance aclivities. This trend has peaked as a result of the current economic
backdrep, particutarly among large public and private clients.

Environmental Services wiil continue its tradition of offering public service utilities, depending on long-term concessions and

projects for growth.

i the Industrial Services and Energy area, the ACS Group combines significant international growth with the stability of its
mainienance contracts and the opportunities fo inves! in electricity generaticn and energy concessicn project assets it has seized.

The growth in international activity stems mainly from the investment plans of its clienis cutside of Spain, and mainly in Latin
America, where Brazil and Mexico continue to be the important markets of reference. The Asian markets, such as India and the
Middle East also offer a number of opportunilies relating to new energy infrastructures in relatien to which the Group has

extensive experience.

Lastly, the ACS Group will continue investing in its portfolio of renewable energy, both thermal solar power and wind power, with
over 2,000 MW in different phases of censtruction and completian. This investment is a clear future commitment which will lead to
improved margins and the growth of the ACS Group's traditional aciivity in Industrial Services.

in view of the aforementionad scenario, the objective of the Group for 2010 includes maintaining sustained operating growth and

improving the prefitability of alf its shareholders.

8.- Board of Directors’ report for the 2008 financial year in accordance with the provisions of Article 116 bis of the

Stock Exchange Law

Pursuant to Article 116 bis of the Stock Exchange Law 24/1988 of 28 July, introduced by Law 6/2007 of 12 April, the Board of
Direstors of ACS Actividades de Construccion y Servicios S.A. subrits to its shareholders the following explanatory report with
the disclosures, which in accordance with the aforementioned provision, have been included in the Directors’ Repors

accompanying the financial statements for 20089,
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a) Capital structure, including securities not {raded on an EC requiated matket, with indication of different classes of
shares and. for each ciass, the rights and obligations they confer and the percentage of share capital thev represent,

As provided in Article 6 of its Company By-Laws, ai 31 December 2009, the Company's share capital amounts to EUR
157,332,297 representad by 314,664,594 fully subscribed and paid shares of EUR 0.50 each, ali of the same class and series.
Al of the shares are fully paid. Pursuant to Article 23 of the Bylaws, in order to be able to aitend the General Shareholders’
Meeting, shareholders are required to hold at least one hundred shares.

b) Any restriction on the transferability of securities.

There are no statutory restrictions on the transferability of shares representing the company's share capital.

Since the company is listed, in order to acquire a percentage equal to or higher than 30% of its share capital or voting rights, a
takeover bid is required to be launched under the terms provided in Article 60 of the Stock Exchange Law 24/1988 and Royal

Decree 1066/2007 of 27 June.

¢) Significant direct or indirect holdings in the share capital.

According to the data reperted to the company by the correspending shareholders, or otherwise, according to data included in
the corresponding register of the Spanish Stock Market Commission:

SHAREHOLDERS 31/12/2099
CORPORACICGN FINANCIERA ALBA, 8.A. 23.481%
CORPORACION FINANCIERA ALCOR. S.A, 13.855%
INVERSIONES VESAN, S.A. 12.336%
FLUXA ROSSELLO, MIGUEL 5.638%
SOUTHEASTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC 5.455%

d) Any restriction on voting rights.

There are no specific restrictions on this right under the Company By-laws. However, as previously indicated, pursuant to
Article 23 of the Company By-Laws, in order to be able to attend the General Shareholders’ Meeting (attendance right),
sharehoiders are required to hoid at least one hundred shares.

e) Shareholders’ agreements.

Mo shareholders’ agreements have been reported {o the Company.

f) Regulations applicable to appointments and substitution of members of governing bodies and the amendment of

Company By-laws.

Appointment and substitution of members of the Board of Directors.

This matter is regulated in Aricles 13 and 14 of the bylaws and Aricles 3, 11 and 24 of the Rules of the Board of Directors,
which essentially provide the following:

The Company is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of a minimum of eleven (11) and a maximum of iwenty-one {(21)
members. At the proposal of the Board of Direclors, the General Sharehelders’ Meeting shall be responsibie for setting, within
the aforementioned firnils, the exact number of members of the Board of Direclors, and appointing the ingividuals to fill these
positions; The Board's proposal is required fo be preceded by a proposal by the Appointment and Remuneration Commiitee.
Nc age limit has been set to be appeinted Board Member or for the exarcise of this position.
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Board members shall hold thair positions for the term provided in the Company By-laws {six years) and may be re-elected on
one or several occasions for terms of the same length.

Board members shall cease to hoid their position when removed by the General Sharehoiders' meeting, when they notify the
Company of their resignation or when the term for which members were appointed has expired, in accordance with Article 145

of the Reguiatiens of the Spanish Mercantile Registry. In the event of a vacancy for any reasen, the Board of Directors may
provisionally fill it frem among the shareholders until the next General Shareholders’ Meeting, where a definitive election shall

take place.

Amendment of the Company By-laws

The procedure for amending the Company By-laws is regufated by Article 29 and generally, Article 144 of the Consclidated
Companies Law, which require approval by the General Shargholders' Meeting, with the attendance guosums and if applicable,
majorities prowided in Article 103 of the aforementioned law. Resoiutions shall be adopted by a simple majority, except where
under section 2 of the aforementioned Article 103 of the Corporations’ Law, such resolutions are reguired to be adopted by
means of the vote in favour of two thirds of the share capital present or represented when the shareholders present or
represented hold less than fifty percent of the subscribed share capital with a right to vote. The simple majority necessary to
approve a resclution shall require the vote in favour of half plus one of the shares with voting rights present or represented at

the meeting.

g) Powers of ihe members of the Board of Directors and, in particular, powers to issue and/or repurchase shares.

The Board of Directors acts jeintly and is granted the broadest of powers to represent and govern the Company. The executive
team is generally entrusted with the management of the Company's ordinary business by the Board, which carries out the
general function of supervising and controlling the Company’s operations. However, the Beard of Directors may direcily
assume the responsibilities and decision-making powers deemed appropriate in relation to the management of the Company’s

husiness.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is of an executive nature and is vested with al powers of the Board of Directors, except
those which may ot legally or statuterily be transferred. Additionaily, the Executive Committee is vested with all powers of the
Board of Direclors which may be legally or statutorily transferred. The executive Vice Chairman and Beard Member-Secretary
also have broad notary powers recorded at the Mercantile Register.

At the General Shareholders Meeting held on 25 May 2009, the Board of Directors of the Company as well as those of
subsidiary companies were authorised o acquire shares in the Cempany for vatuable consideration, for the 18-monih period
following the date of the General Shareholders Meefing, and pursuant to the terms and requirements set forth in section 75 and
related provisions of the Consolidated Companies Law, the par value of which when added to the shares already held by the
Company and its subsidiaries, does not exceed 5% of the issued share capital. The minimum and maximum price shall be,
respectively, the par value of the shares and a price not exceeding the price at which they are traded at the stock market on
the date of the purchase, or the price authorised by the competent body of the Stock Exchange or by the Spanish Stock Market

Commission.”

In accordance with Article 153.1.b) and 2 of the Consolidated Companies Law, the General Shareholders' Meeting held on 25
May 2009 authorized the Company's Beard of Directors to increase capital by up to half the Company's share capital at the
date of this resolution on one or more occasions, and at the date, in the amount and under the conditions freely agreed in each
case, wilhin five years following 25 May 2009, and without havirg previously submitted a proposal to the General
Shareholders' Meeting. Accordingly, the Board of Directors may set the terms and conditions under which capital is increased,
as well as the fealures of the shares, investars and markets at which the increases are aimed and the issue procedure; freely
offer the unsubscribed shares in the preferential subscription period; and in the event of incomplete subscription, cancel the
capital increase or increase capital solely by the amount of the subscribed shares, The capital increase or increases may he
carried out through the issue of new shares, either ordinary, without voting rights, preference or recoverable, and Article 8 of
the Bylaws shall be amended accordingly. The new shares shalt be payable by means of menetary contributions equal to the
par value of the shares and any share premium which may be agreed. In accordance with Article 159.2 of the Consolidated
Companies Law, the Board of Directors is expressly empowered to exclude preferential subscription rights in full or in part in
relation to all or some of the Issues agreed under the scope of this autherisation, where it is in the interest of the company and
as fong as the par value of the shares to be issued plus any share premium agreed is equal to the fair value of the Company's
shares based on a report to be drawn up at the Board's request, by an independent auditor other than the Company's auditor,
which is appointed for this purpose by the Spanish Mercantite Register on any occasion in which the power to exclude
preferential subscription rights granted in this paragraph is exercised. Additionally, the Company's Board of Directors is
authorised tc request the listing or delisting of any shares issued, in Spanish or foreign organised secondary markets. The
Board of Directors is expressly authorised to delegate the powers contained in this resolution.
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Additionzlly, a its meeting held on 25 May 2009 and In accordance with applicable legisiation, the Board of Directors resolved
to delegate to the Board of Dirgctors the power to issue fixed income securities, either simple and exchangeable or convertible,
and warrants on the Company's newly issued shares or shares in circulation, under the following terms:

1.- The securities the Board of Directors is empowered to issue may be debentures, bonds and other similar fixed income
securities, whether simple of. in the case of debentures and bonds, exchangeable for shares of the Company or any of the
Group companies and/er convertible into shares of the Company, and warrants on the Company's newly issued shares or

shares in cisculation

2 - Securities may be issued on ong or more occasions, and at any date within tne maximum five-year period following the
date of the adoption of this resolution.

3.- The total ameunt of the issue or issues of securities agreed under this delegation of authority, regardless of their nature,
plus the total aumber of shares listed by the Company and ouistanding at the issue date may not exceed a maximum limit of
eighty five percent of the equily of ACS Actividades de Construccidn y Servicios, S.A. according to the latest approved

balance sheet.

4.- la exercise of the powers granted herein, the Board of Direclors shali have powers including, but not limited to
determining the following: the amount, within the aforementioned overall maximum limit.; the place, date and currency of the
issue, and if applicable, its equivalence in Euros; the denomination, whether, bonds or debenture, subcrdinate or not,
warrants or any other instrurment permitted by law; the interest rate, payment dates and payment procedures; and in the
case of warrants, the amount and means of calculating the premium or exercise price; whather they are instrumented in
perpetuity or are repayable, and in the latter case, the repayment term and maturity dates; the type of reimbursement,
premiums o5 balches, any guarantees; the form of representation, i.e. by means of certificates or book entries; preferential
subscription rights, if any, and the subscription regime; applicable legislation; application, if appiicable, for listing on official or
unofficial secondary markets, whether arganised or not, in Spain or abroad, of the securities issued; and appointment, if
applicable, of a commissioner and approval of the rules that are to govern the iegal relationiships between the Company and
the syndicate of holders af the securities issued.

5. In the case of the issue of cenvertile and/or exchangeable bonds or debentures, the following criteria has been

established:

5.1+ The Board of Directors shall be authorised to determine whether the securities are convertible andior
exchangechle, and whether conveision and/or exchange shail be obligatory or voluntary, and in the latter case, if it is to
be at the option of the holder or the issuer, with the pericdicity and within the time limits laid down in the resolution on
their issue, not exceeding len years from the date of issue.

5.2.- The Board of Directors is also empowered {¢ determine if the issuer reserves the right at any moment to oot
between conversion into new shares or exchange for shares in circulation, specifying the nature of the shares to be
delivered at the time of conversion or exchange. The issuer may also opi fo deliver a cembination of new and

circuiating shares.

5.3.- The ratio of conversion and/or exchange may be fixed, and for this purpose, the fixed income securities will be
valued at their par value and shares at the fixed rate indicated in the resolution of the Board of Directors which made
use of this delegated power, or at the rate of exchange defined on the date(s} indicated in the resolution of the Board of
Directors, accerding to the Company's share price on the stock exchange on the date(s) or in the period(s) taken as
reference in the resolution. However, the price of the shares, for the purpose of their conversicn or exchange, may not
be less than the greater of (i) the arithmetic mean of the closing prices of the Company's shares in the Spanish
Continuous Market of stock exchanges over the period defined by the Board of Directors, which shall not be more than
three months nor less than fitteen days prior {o the daie on which the Board passed the resolution to issue the fixed
income securities, and {ii) the closing price of the shares on the same Continuous Markel on the day prior to the
passing of the resolution to issue the fixed income securities. Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors may
issue the debentures or bonds with a variable rate of conversion andfor exchange. In this case, the price of the shares
for the purposes and/or exchange shall be the arithmetic mean of the closing prices of the Company's shares on the
Spanish Continucus market of stock exchanges over the period defined by the Board of Directors, which shall not be
mare than three months nor less than fifteen days prior to the date of conversion and/or exchange, with a premium, or if
applicable, a discouni on said price per share. The premium or discount may differ for each conversion andfor
exchange date {or, if applicable, each tranche of the issue), although if a discount is set on the price per share, this may

not be more than twenty percent.
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5.4 - The fractions of a share which might be due to a bond or debenture holder shall be rounded down to the nearest
whole number of shares and each holder shali be paid in cash any difference in vaiue this rounding has given nise io.

5.5 - Pursuant to Asticle 292.2 of the Spanish Consclidated Companies Law, debentures may not be converted into
shares when the par vailue of the shares is less than that of the debentures. Additionaily, the value of the share may

nct be less than its par value.

5.6.- Upon approving an issue of convertible and/er exchangeable bonds or debentures. the Board of Directors shall
issue a Directors’ report developing and specifying, based on the criteria described above, the basis for and forms of
convearsion specifically applicable to the indicated issue. This report shali be accompanied by the relevant report from
the auditors referred to in Article 292 of the Spanish Consolidated Companies Law. Additionally, thesa reporis will be
made available to the shareholders, and if applicable, to the holders of convertible and/or exchangeable fixed income
securnties angfor warranis, and the shareholders wil be informed at the first General Shareholders' Meeting held after
adopiing the resolution on the issue of the securities.

6.- In the casa of the issue of warrants, to which, by analogy, the provisions of the Spanish Consolidated Companies Law for
issues of convertible debentures shall apply, the following criteria is set:

6.1.- The warrants issued may entitle their holders to subscribe new shares in the Company and/ or acquire circulating
shares in the Company, and the Board of Directors shall be auvthorised to determine whether or not they are entitled 1o

4o 50.

6.2.- The deadline for the exercise of the securities issued shall be determined by the Board and may not exceed ten

days following the date of their issue.

5 3.- The Board of Directors may also stipulate that the Company reserves the right to opt for holders of warrants to
subscribe new shares or acquire shares in circulaticn at the time of exercising the warrant. it may also opt to deliver a
combination of new and circulating shares. However, the issuer must respect the principle of equal ireatment to aif the
helders of wasrants that are exercised on the same date.

6.4.  Thn exercise price of the warrant shall be definred by the Board of Directors in the resolution on the issue of
sacunties, or shall be defined on the date or dates indicated in the resoluticn adopted by the Beard of Directors,
dapendirg on the market price of the Company's shares on the date{s) or during the period(s) taken as a reference in
die resotudion. The exercise price may he variable depending on the date on which the warrant is exercised. However,
the shase price to be considered, may not be less than the greater of (i} the arithmetic mean of the closing prices of the
Company's shares in the Spanish Continuous Markel of stock exchanges over the period defined by the Board of
Directors. which shall not be more than three monihs nor less than fifteen days prior to the date on which the Board
passed the resolution o issue the warrants, and {ii) the ¢losing price of the shares on the same Continuous Market on
the day prior to the passing of the resolution fo issue the warrants.. In no case may the sum of the premiumi{s) paid for
each warrant and its exercise price be less than the market value of the company's shares as defined in the previous
paragraph, or less than the par value of the Company’s sharas,

6.5.- Upon approving an issue of warrants, the Board of Direclors shall issue a Directors' report developing and
specifying, based on the criteria described above, the basis for and forms of conversion specifically applicable to the
indicated issue. This report shall be accompanied by the relevant repor from the auditers referred to in Article 292 of
the Spanish Consolidated Companies Law. Additionally, these reports will be made available to the shareholdars, and i
applicabie, to the holders of convertible and/or exchangeable fixed income securities and/or warranis, ang the
shareholders will be informed at the first General Shareholders' Meeting held after adopling the resoiution on ine ssu2

of the securities.

7.- At all events, the authorisation of the Board of Directors to issue convertible andfor exchangeable debentures or bonds,
and to issue warrants, shall include, but shall not be limited to the following powers:

7 1.- The authority to increase the share capital by the amount necessary to meet demand for the conversion of
converiible securities or the exarcise of warrants on newly issued shares. This power may only be exercised by the
Board to the extent that the sum of the increase in capital necessary {o meet the demand resulting from the issue of
convertible debentures or bonds or the exercise of warrants on newly issued shares, added io alf other capital
increases that have been agreed under the scope of autherisations granted by the General Sharehoiders' Meeting,
does not exceed the limit of one half of the share capital envisaged in Article 153.1 b) of the Spanish Consolidated
Companies Law. This authorisation to increase the share capital includes the power {o issue and put into circulation, on
one of more occasions, the shares that are necessary to carry out the conversion or exercise, and {o amend the Article
of the Bylaws relating o the share capital figure, and if applicable, {o cancel the part of the capital increase that was not
necessary for the conversion of securities into shares or the exercise of the warrants.
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7.2- The power to exclude, pursuant to Article 152.2 of the Spanish Consolidated Companies Law, the preferential
subscription fights of shareholtders or the holders of convertinle andfor exchangeable bonds or debentures, or of
warrants, when necessary to capture financial rescurces in the domestic and international markets, or it is ctherwise in
the Company's interest. In any event, if the Board decides to override preferential subscription rights in relation to a
specific issue of converiibie debentures ar bonds or warrants on newly issued shares under the authorisation granted
herein, at the date on which this resolution is passed, it shall issue a detailed report stating the specific reasons why it
is in the Company's inierest {o take this measure. This repont will be accompanied by a further report issued by an
auditor, pursuant to Article 159.2 of the Spanish Consolidated Companies Law. These reports will be made available to
the sharehoiders and holders of converdible debentures or bonds, and the shareholders will be informed at the first
General Shareholders’ Meeting held after adopting the resofution on the issue of the securities.

7.3.- The power to develop and specify in detail the basis for and modes of conversion or exchange and exercise of
warrants bearing in mind the criteria defined above.

8 - The Board of Directors, at the successive Gensrzl Shareholders’ Meetings held by the Cempany, shall inform
shareholders of any use made of the delegation of power referred to in this resoiution.

9.- The Board of Directors is expressly authorised to guarantee, en the Company's behalf and for a maximum of five years
following the zdoption of this resolution, the obligations of all types which may arise for its subsidiaries as a result of the
issues of fixed income securities (debentures, bonds, promissory notes, ar any other) or of warrants, by the aforementioned

subsidiaries.

10.- Where appropriate, the Company shall apply for admission to trading on official or unofficial secondary stock markets,
whether organised or otherwise, of the bonds, debentures and other securities issued by virtue of this authorisation, and the
Board of Diretors shall be empowered to undertake the formalities necessary or appropriate for these purposes. in
accordance with Adicle 27 of the Spanish Stock Market Regulations, it is hereby expressly stated that in the case of the
subsequent application for the exclusion from the stock exchange of the securities issued by virtue of this authorisation, this
shali be adon:ed with the same formalities as stated in said Adicle and, in this even!, the interests of shareholders or
bongholders who oppose this move or vote against it shall be guaranteed in accerdance with all applicable provisions of law.

h) Significant resclutions that the Company may have adopted that once in force, were amended or concluded in the
event of any change of control over the company following a public takeover bid, and the effects thereof, except when
such disclosurz may be seriously damaging to the Company. This exception shall not be applicable when the
company is legally required to disclose this information,

There are no significant contracts giving rise to the aforementioned circumstance.

i} Agreements between the Company and its directors, managers or employees establishing severance payments when
they resign or are dismissed without due cause or if the employment contract expires due to a takeover bid.

Pursuant to sections B.1.13 and G of the 2008 Annuai Corporate Governance Report, there are a total of 9 senior

managemeant members in the different ACS Group companies, including executive board members, whose contracts provide
for the cases described under this heading with maximum severance payments of up to five years' salary.

9.- Annual Corporate Governance Report

In accordance with Article 202.5 of the Consolidated Companies Law, following is the Annuat Corporate Governance Report,
which forms and integral part of the 2008 Directors' Report.
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